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NOTICE

SHORTER NOTICE is hereby given that the 4™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members of Entero
Healthcare Solutions Private Limited will be held at 605/606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai 400051 on Saturday, the 31°% day of December 2022, at 5:00 p.m. to
transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2022, along with the reports of the Board and Auditor thereon.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Sd/-

Jayant Prakash

General Counsel and Company Secretary

(Mem: F6742)

Date: December 22, 2022

Address: 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai — 400051.

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.
Tel. : 022-26529100 / 69019100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com
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NOTES: -
1) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A

PROXY TO ATTEND AND, ON POLL, TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED
NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

2) Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received in the enclosed Proxy Form at the
Registered Office of the company not less than forty-eight hours before the time fixed for the
Meeting.

3) During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the

meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to
inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours (between 10:00 A.M. and
5:30 P.M.) of the Company, provide that not less than three days of notice in writing is given
to the Company.

4) A Corporate Member intending to send its authorised representative(s) to attend the Meeting
in terms of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to send to the company a
certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing such representative to attend and vote on
its behalf at the Meeting.

5) Documents relating with the businesses and registers are available for inspection till date of
AGM on all working days (except Saturday & Sunday) at the Corporate Office of the company
at 605/606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai 400051
during business hours.

6) Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report
to the Meeting. Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are enclosed.

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.
Tel. : 022-26529100 / 69019100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Date: Saturday, 315 December, 2022, Time: 5:00 P.M.
Venue: 605/606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai 400051.

| / We hereby record my/our presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company at 605/606,
6th floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai 400051.

Member’s Folio Name of Member / Authorised  Signature of Member /
Representative / Proxy Authorised Representative /
Proxy
Note:

1. Sign this attendance slip and hand it over at the attendance verification counter at the entrance of
meeting hall.

2. Bodies Corporate, whether a company or not, who are members, may attend through their
authorised representatives appointed under Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013. A copy of
authorisation should be deposited with the Company.

3. Electronic copy of Notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) were sent to all the members at
the email address registered with the Company. Members receiving electronic copy and attending the
AGM can print copy of this Attendance Slip.

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.
Tel. : 022-26529100 / 69019100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204
Name of the Company: Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Registered office: Plot No. I-35, Building -B, Industrial Area Phase-l,13/7 Mathura Road, Faridabad HR
121003

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client ID and DP ID:

I/We, being the member (s) of the Company and holding .........ccceevevvevreeerrceereeereenene. shares of the
above named company, hereby appoint

1. Name: ..veeeveveeeennnn,
Address:
E-mail Id:

Signature:.......ccoeeeeveueenen. , or failing him

2. Name: .oovveeveeeen,
Address:
E-mail Id:

Signature:................ , or failing him

3. Name: ...eeevvveeeennnn,
Address:
E-mail Id:

Signature: ................

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Saturday, 31°* December, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. at 605/606, 6th
floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai 400051 and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolutions:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2022, along with the reports of the Board and Auditor thereon.

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.
Tel. : 022-26529100 / 69019100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com
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Signed this...... day of......... 20....

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Affix Revenue Stamp

Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Reg. Office. : Plot No. I-35, Building - B,
Industrial Area, Phase |, 13/7, Mathura
Road, Faridabad, Haryana - 121003
CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.
Tel. : 022-26529100 / 69019100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com
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BOARD’S REPORT
To

The Members

Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Plot No. I-35, Building -B, Industrial Area Phase-I,
13/7 Mathura Road, Faridabad - 121003

The Board of Director of your Company are pleased to present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022,

1. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

The total income of the Company during the year under review on standalone basis was Rs. 1,641.58
million as against Rs. 1,282.96 million of previous year. The total income of the Company during the
year under review on consolidated basis was Rs. 25,265.48 million as against Rs. 17,836.67 million of
previous year. The |oss after tax on standalone basis was Rs. 408.47 million as compared to previous
year loss after tax of Rs. 181.52 million.

2. FINANCIAL SUMMARY
(Amount in Rs. Million)

Standalone Consolidated
Particulars For the financial | For the financial | For the financial | For the financial
year ended year ended year ended year ended
31/03/2022 31/03/2021 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Total Income 1,641.58 1,282.96 25,265.48 17,836.67
Total Expenses 2,050.05 1,464.48 25,463.59 17,945.05
it
far:f' 4 o] hathe (408.47) (181.52) (198.11) (108.38)
Profit or (Loss) After
Tax for the year (408.47) (181.52) (294.38) (153.54)

The highlights of the financial performance of the subsidiaries of the Company including disclosures
in the format of form AOC 1 as on March 31, 2022, are enclosed as Annexure | to this report. The
Board do not recommend any amount to be transferred to reserves.

3. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022 was Rs. 7,043.5 million (Rupees
Seven Billion Forty-Three Million Five Hundred Thousand only) divided into 4 million (Four million)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and 700.35 million (Seven Hundred Million Three
Hundred Fifty Thousand) Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten only) each. The paid up share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022 was Rs. 6,228.4
million (Rupees Six Billion Two Hundred and Twenty-Eight Million Four Hundred and One Thousand
Seven Hundred and Sixty only) consisting of Equity Share Capital of Rs 38.50 mlllron and —
Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Share Capital of Rs. 6,189.90 million. :

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051,
Tel. : 022-26529100 / 69019100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com
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The issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital increased from Rs. 5,172.12 million as on March 31,
2021 to Rs. 6,228.4 million as on March 31, 2022. During the year under review, the Company had
undertaken following transactions relating to share capital of the Company:

Increase in Share Capital The Company had issued 10,18,77,676 Compulsorily Convertible
Cumulative Preference Shares and 37,50,000 Equity Shares during
the year under review.

Buy Back of Securities Nil
Sweat Equity Nil
Bonus Shares Nil

| Employees Stock Option Plan | Nil

4, DIVIDEND

Your directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2022 considering
loss incurred by the Company.

5, EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The annual return of the Company can be accessed at :
https://www.enterohealthcare.com/pdf/MGT7.pdf

6. BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR & ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS

During the period under review, the Board of Directors of your Company met Eleven (11) times and
the gap between two meetings did not exceed as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and
rule and circulars issued thereunder. The Board Meetings were held on 1-Apr-2021, 23-Apr-2021,
15-May-2021, 28-Jun-2021, 16-Aug-2021, 10-Sep-2021, 21-Sep-2021, 6-Oct-2021, 9-Nov-2021, 29-
Dec-2021 and 11-Mar-2022.

S. No. Name of Directors No. of Meetings
Entitled to attend Attended
1. Mr. Prabhat Agrawal 11 11
2. Mr. Prem Sethi 11 11
3. Dr. Sunny Sharma 14, 6
4. Mr. Vipul Desai 11 11
5. Mr. Arun Sadhanandham 11 10

7 CHANGE IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):
As on date, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of following Directors:

Mr. Prabhat Agrawal

Mr. Prem Sethi

Dr. Sunny Sharma

Mr. Vipul Desai

Mr. Arun Sadhanandham

SRS S

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.
Tel. : 022-26529100 / 69019100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com
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None of the directors are liable to retire by rotation.

A. Changes in Board Structure:
a. Appointment o Nil
b. Cessation o Nil

B. Changes in KMP:

a. Appointment : Mr. Jayant Prakash was appointed as General Counsel and Company

Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 3 January 2022

b. Cessation © Ms. Swathi Kamath resigned as Head Legal and Company Secretary of the

8.

Company w.e.f. November 9, 2021.

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The Company was not required to constitute any committees of the Board. The Board has not
voluntarily constituted any Committees of the Board.

9.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

T

10.

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to the material departures;

the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year ended March 31, 2022,
and of the loss of the Company for the period;

the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. MSKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the

Company at First Annual General Meeting held on 24" December 2019 to hold office ur]ﬂl the-- .
conclusion of Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company. 7 "\

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.
022-26529100 / 69019100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com
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11. REPORTING OF FRAUDS

During the period, there has been no instance of fraud reported by the Statutory Auditors under
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, either to the Company or
to the Central Government.

12. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS
OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN

THEIR REPORTS

There was no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the Auditors in
their report. The observations made in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do
not call for any further comments.

Further, the provisions relating to Secretarial Audit by Practicing Company Secretary are not
applicable to the Company.

13. DISCLOSURE REGARDING MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS UNDER SUB SECTION (1) OF
SECTION 148

The provisions relating to maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable on the Company during the financial year.

14.  MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REALTE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT.

No material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company, occurred
from the end of the financial year 2021-22 till the date of this report.

15. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY-

a. The steps taken or impact on conservation | The Company is engaged in pharma
of energy;

b. The steps taken by the company for
utilising alternate sources of energy;

c. The capital investment on

conservation equipments;

medicines, etc.,, which requires

energy

energy consumption, wherever possible.

/

surgical products’ distribution trading of
very
minimum amount of energy. However, the
Company has taken measures to reduce

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION-

Iﬁ) | The efforts made towards technology absorption

No new technolofg,y’,/ﬁ“as3 b&émj

\Z \

-;';

- ‘—..“‘.u/
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absorbed during the financial
year.

(b) | The benefits derived like product improvement, cost | N.A.
reduction,  product development or import
substitution.

(c) | In case of imported technology (imported during the | No new technology has been
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the imported during the last three
financial year)-
i.  the details of technology imported

ii.  the year of import

iii.  whether the technology been fully absorbed

iv. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption

has not taken place, and the reasons thereof

(d) | The expenditure incurred on Research and | NIL
Development.

years.

(C) Foreign Exchange earning and outgo:

Particulars For the period ended For the year ended
31/03/2022 31/03/2021
(In INR at actual) (In INR at actual)
Foreign exchange earning - 48,097,078
Foreign exchange outgo* 117,787,098 560,400,743
*including advance to vendors of INR 14,12,798 for financial year ended March 31, 2022
and INR 5,93,78,304 for financial year ended March 31, 2021.

16. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company operates in a volatile, uncertain, complex and ambiguous (VUCA) world with rapid
changes. These changes bring a mix of opportunities and uncertainties impacting the Company’s
objectives. Risk Management, which aims at managing the impact of these uncertainties, is an
integral part of the Company’s strategy setting process. The Company regularly identifies these
uncertainties and after assessing them, devises short-term and long-term actions to mitigate any risk
which could materially impact the Company’s long-term goals. Mitigation plans to significant risks
are well integrated with functional and business plans and are reviewed on a regular basis by the
senior leadership. The Company endeavors to continually sharpen its Risk Management systems and
processes in line with a rapidly changing business environment. The Company, through its risk
management process, aims to contain the risks within its risk appetite. There are no risks which in
the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company.

17. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year under review.

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.

Tel. :

022-26529100 / 69019100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com



&

Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

E -t Reg. Office. : Plot No. 1-35, Building - B,
n erO Industrial Area, Phase |, 13/7, Mathura
Healthcare Solutions Pvt. Ltd. Road, Faridabad, Haryana - 121003

CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204

18. DETAILS RELATING TO DEPOSITS COVERED UNDER CHAPTER V OF THE ACT

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in INR)
1. Accepted during the year NIL
2 Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year NIL
3. Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits NIL

or payment of interest thereon during the year and if so,
number of such cases and the total amount involved:

i. at the beginning of the year

ii. Maximum during the year

iii. at the end of the year

4, Details of deposits which are not in compliance with the NIL
requirements of Chapter V of the Act

*Note: Disclosure pursuant to Rule 2(1)(c)(viii) of Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014:
No declaration is required as the Company has not received any monies from the Directors during the
year.

19. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATOR, COURTS,
TRIBUNAL IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN
FUTURE:

During the year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by the Regulators or
Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status of your Company.

20. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

Your Company has a set of procedures which enables to implement internal financial control across
the organization and ensure that the same are adequate and operating effectively.

21.  PARTICULARS OF REMUNRATION OF EMPLOYEES

The Company is not listed on any stock exchanges and accordingly the provisions of Section 197(12)
of the Companies Action, 2013 read with sub-rule 2 of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company.

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility were not applicable on the Company
during the financial year.

23.  PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace. The Company has constituted
an Internal Complaints Committee and has adopted a Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal
of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of meeh ate.
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there nde,p forZ

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.
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prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. The objective of this
policy is to lay clear guidelines and provide right direction in case of any reported incidence of sexual
harassment across the Company’s offices, and take appropriate decision in resolving such issues.

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has not received any complaint on sexual
harassment.

24. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the period, the Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by
Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with all
amendments thereto.

25.  INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

No application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
(31 of 2016) during the year against the Company.

26. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company has completed acquisition of following companies after the closing of financial year
ended on March 31, 2022, and the companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company:

1. Saurashtra Medisolutions Private Limited
2. SVS Lifesciences Private Limited
3. S.S. Pharma Traders Private Limited

Apart from the abovementioned developments, there were no material changes and commitments
affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end of the financial year to
which this financial statement relates and on the date of this report.

27.  TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company as
there was no dividend declared and paid previous financial year.

28. SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY:

The list of subsidiaries and shareholding of the Company in respective subsidiaries as on March 31,
2022 are as follows:

S. No. Name of the Subsidiary Company Percentage holding
1. Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (‘AHSPL’) 100%
2. Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited (‘Avenues’) 100%
3. Barros Enterprises Private Limited (‘Barros’) 100%
4, Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited (‘Calcutta’) 100%
5. Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (‘CHSPL’) 100%

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.
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S. No. Name of the Subsidiary Company Percentage holding
6. Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Limited (‘CPDPL’) 100%
7. Chethana Pharma Private Limited (‘CPPL’) 100%
8. Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (‘Chhabra’) 100%
9. Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited (‘Chirag’) 100%
10. City Pharma Distributors Private Limited (‘City Pharma’) 100%
11. CPD Pharma Private Limited (‘CPD’) 100%
12. Curever Pharma Private Limited (‘Curever’) 100%
13. G.S. Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited (‘GS’) 100%
14. Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited (‘Galaxystar’) 100%
15. Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited ('Getwell’) 85%
16. Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited (‘Jaggi’) 100%
17 Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited (‘Millennium’) 100%
18. New RRPD Private Limited (‘/RRPD’) 100%
19. New Siva Agencies Private Limited (‘NSAPL’) 100%
20. Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (‘Novacare’) 100%
21 Quromed Lifesciences Private Limited (‘Quromed’) 100%
22. RS M Pharma Private Limited (‘RSM’) 100%
23. Rada Medisolutions Private Limited (‘Rada’) 100%
24, Rimedio Pharma Private Limited (‘Rimedio’) 100%
25, Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Private Limited (‘Sesha Balajee’) 100%
26. Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited (‘SVMPL’) 100%
27 Sri Parshva Pharma Distributors Private Limited (‘Sri Parshva’) 100%
28. Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited (‘Sri Rama’) | 100%
29. Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited (‘Sundarlal’) 100%
30. SVMED Solutions Private Limited ('SVMED’) 100%
31. Swami Medisolutions Private Limited (‘SMPL’) 100%
32, Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited (‘Vasavi’) 100%
33, Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited(‘WHSPL’) 100%
34, Zennx Software Solutions Private Limited(‘zsspPL’) 100%

Subsidiaries acquired during the financial year and date of acquisition of all the subsidiary forms part
of Annexure | of the Boards report. There were no companies which ceased to be subsidiary of the
Company during the year.

29.  PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company have extended inter-corporate deposit, made investments and provided corporate
guarantees during the year under review. The inter-corporate deposits, investments and corporate
guarantees to subsidiaries are exempted under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013. The details of inter-corporate deposits, investments made by the Company, and corporate
guarantees extended by the Company to the Banks for working capital facilities availed by
subsidiaries are enclosed herewith as Annexure Il. The inter-corporate deposits was granted to the A
subsidiaries for meeting their working capital requirements and for general corporate purposes; '."‘\\.
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30. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The Company had entered into related party transaction with its subsidiaries and pursuant to
notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide reference no. G.S.R. 464(E) dated June 5, 2015,
subsidiaries of a holding company are exempted from being related party as defined under Section
2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the disclosures of such transactions under form AOC
2 are not applicable to the Company. Further the details of such transaction’s forms part of note no.
47 of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2022. Those transactions entered by the Company were in ordinary course of business and on arm's
length basis.

Additionally, the disclosures of related party transactions other than the aforesaid mentioned
transactions are annexed to this Report in Form AOC-2 as Annexure lI.

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The directors place on record their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
extended by bank & financial institutions, its employees, its investors and all other associates and

look forward to continue fruitful association with all business partners of the company.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

\ ‘\?Yy

Prabhat Agrawa Prem Sethi

Managing Director Executive Director

(DIN: 07466382) (DIN: 07077034)

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Address: 29th Floor, N 2901, Address: House No - 03, Sector-

Lodha World One, Senapati Bapat 37, Amarnagar, Faridabad —
Marg, Upper Worli, Delisle Road, 121003
Mumbai - 400013

Date: December 22, 2022

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.
Tel. : 022-26529100 / 69019100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com



Plot No. I-35, Building - B,

Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Reg. Office.
Industrial Area, Phase |, 13/7, Mathura

Road, Faridabad, Haryana - 121003
CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204

%00T %00T %00T %00T %00T %00T %58 %00T %00T %00T BuipjoyaJeys jo %
Z - = = = = = - - - puapialq pasodoud
Jeal ayjy 1oy xe
£y S9'vS ¥8'E v6'£T (€s5°6) (ot'8) #0°Z€ TO'EE (vZ'1) (68's) | 1ayv (sso1) 40 Woid
= = 680 e L = = 6C°T - - = UoI1BXEY 10} UOISIADIG
xe}
£TY 80°EL z€'9 87°0€ (es'6) (ot'8) vz Th 8Z'Sh (vz'1) (68's) | a4049q (sso1) / woud
94'STO'T EL6YE'T | ¥P6L2T 6°86L'T TL°6€9 6T°S6Y €ET°LLST | 8E'60EC 8€'8€8°T 8€'€G8 Janouiny
- - - - - - - - - - SJUSLL]SIAU|
£6'6VE I8 TrE L0°0ZL ¥ 152 0T°€8T 8L'SYT LLSPE €9°€8E T€'990°T 98'¥9¢ s313[1qel] [ejoL
9€°SHE €0°'T9% L 117952 9T"#91 08'88 88°06% TT'LED FPEETTT 89°€87 sjasse |eloL
(£9v) 1S°LTT S6°T €S (v0'6T) (80°£S) 0T°S9 81'8€ (86'29) (8z'L1) sn|dins R saAISSSY
0T'0 00T 010 0T'0 010 010 0008 00°ST 00°0TT 00°9¢ |ende) aleys
paJinboe
6102 610T 6107 8107 8T0T 810C 8102 sem Aseipisqns
-heN-0z -ReN-ST | -|udv-ST | 610Z-994-TZ | 6T0Z-Uer-61 -20-62 -29@-9Z | -8nv-vT | 810Z-8nv-60 | -8ny-60 | usym aduls  3leq
slejnaiyed

188er Seay) sanuany | JeisAxejen eigeyyd |[epepuns | [@mi1an NSYH 2JEJEAON SO SalweN

Healthcare Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

Entero

(uoniw *sy u) syunowy)

ZZ0Z ‘TE Y2JBA pPapua Jeah |erdueuly 3yl 4oy SaLIBIPISGNS JO JUDSLISIELS [BIDUBUL BY] Jo sainjea} jualjes Sujuleluod JUaLIAeIS
(¢TOZ ‘sany (s3unoddy) saluedwo) jo g ajns Y3Im peal gZT uoildas jo (€) uonaas-qns o1 osinoad 3511y 03 JUBNSINg)

T-20V wuo4
| a4nxauuy

:022-26529100 / 69019100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051
Tel.




Plot No. 1-35, Building - B,

Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Reg. Office.
Road, Faridabad, Haryana - 121003

CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204

Industrial Area, Phase |, 13/7, Mathura

Healthcare Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

(* Entero

(pa31wiy 31BALId SUOIIN|OS BJedy)|eay 0431u3 Aq palesodiodu]) uonesodiodul Jo 918,

%00T %00T %00T %00T %00T %00T %00T %001 %00T %00T 3uipjoyaJeys Jo %
- - = = = B - = - - puspiaig pasodold
Jead ayj Joj xe|
(vo°0) (vo°0) 16°9T v6'ET LT S9'8 vS°'8S S9'ET LE'E OV'€ | Jayy (sso1) Jo yoid
- - 96°0 18°0 e = 9T'T . = - UOI1EXE] JOJ UOISINOI4
Xel
(r0°0) (v0°0) 6622 ¥9°81 LT v8'TT 9€'8L 61°81 st L'y | dJojaq (sso1) / woud
00'0 000 T€'69S 86°569 §9°/8S 0S'8IET | 6V'S56'T | €v'676 9vLL ELLLY JanouIn]
- - - - - = - = - - SIUDWIISIAU
L00 L0°0 65°09T 96'T0C €L°9ST L6'TLY 8E'TZE 18°€9¢C 0T’LTT ESETT safl|iqe| [e30L
010 010 76261 L8LTT 88'6VT S0°Z6Y T Ly 89'G8¢ 86°8TZ 4 RT43 s1asse [e10]
(80°0) (20°0) gTTe 18'ST (s679) 26'6T v8°ZZT LLTT 29T 658 sn|dins 13 sanIasay
0T'0 010 0T’0 010 0T'0 0T°0 00’ 0T'0 0T'0 00T [ende) aieys
paiinboe
+0202 +0202 0zoz 6102 6T0C 6102 610C 6T0C | sem Aeipisqns
-1eN-9Z -IBN-9Z | -JBIN-ZO | 0Z0Z-Uer-€T | 6T0Z-8nv-TZ | -8ny-£0 -8ny-90 | -unr-z1 -ReN-T€ -AeN-6Z | usym  duls  3jeg
aolejeg sie|naiJed

olpawly | pawoinp | solieg eysag epey wnuwauN | 1ddd | QIWAS INeSEA 1dSH) | seweN

(uojiw *sy ui syunowy)

TZ0T ‘T€ Y24elA papus Jeak [erdueuly 3y3 10} S9LIRIPISGNS JO JUSWIILIS [BIDUBUL 3Y] JO Sainleay jualjes SulUIEIUOD JUSWAELS
(vToZ ‘sa|ny (s3unoddy) saluedwo) Jo § ajnJ Y3m peas 6ZT U0I1II3S JO (€) uonoas-gns 03 osinoad 3s41 03 Juensing)

T-00V w.o4
| anxauuy

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.

:022-26529100 / 69019100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com

Tel.



Plot No. I-35, Building - B,

Industrial Area, Phase |, 13/7, Mathura

Road, Faridabad, Haryana - 121003
CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204

Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Reg. Office.

Healthcare Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

(* Entero

(PanwiT 31eALId SUOIIN|OS aJedyl|eaH 04alu] Aq palelodlodul) uoljesodiodu) Jo 31e(,

%001 %001 %00T %00T %001 %00T %00T %00T %00T %00T suipjoyaieys j0 %
= = = N B - N - = - puapialg pasodold
JeaA ayy Joj xe|
o0 (z00) (£0€) (1z°1) TL6T (v eLn) (65°T) (sg€) (¥6°1T) (9s°'7) | 42V (sso1) Jo yoid
= = - - - - - = s - uoIlexe] 10} UOISIAOId
Xe}
€50 (z0'0) (£0°€) (12'1) 26'ST (zv'LLT) (T1°2) (ZT'v) (¥6°T) (9sv) | @4042q (sso1) / 1y0id
9%'90T 000 LT9L 12°CET L8TEL VETLT 0€'1S 8/°99T €0°L0T 61°06 Janouing
- = = = = - - = - - SIUQWIISaAU|
L9°68 Z00 79'2s 05°8S TETHT 8L°LTY 68°7€ ST'ES L9179 81°0S saly|iqel| [e10L
LT'06 010 5967 6€°LS 76192 60V 7S1E 1.°0S 9909 9eTY s13sse |30
00 (zo0) (£0%€) (tzT) LY'6T (6€7£LT) (8v'T) (¥s2) (1Tv) (z6°2) sn|dins 13 san1asay
010 010 010 010 ST0 010 010 010 01’0 010 |ended aseys
paJinboe
1202 «1202 1202 120T 1202 +120Z 1202 020z F0¢0T | SEM Aselpisqns
-390-70 -NON-60 -1dy-p1T -1dy-¢T -1dy-T0 -uef-6T1 -uer-1o -dos-v1 020zZ-8nv-90 -idy-gp | USum  =ouls  aleg
ewueyd sie|noijed

1dVSN 1dssz Ao 1dSHY 1dSHM Janaun) | epmoje) add 1dINIAS 1dadd | sswen

(uorjjiw *sy u1 spunowy)

TT0Z ‘T€ Y24e\ papua Jeah [eldueuly 3yl 104 S3LRIPISGNS JO JUSWIALE]S |eUeBUl 3Y3 JO Sainlea) juaijes Sululelu0d JuaWAe1S
(rTOZ ‘sany (s3uno2dy) saluedwo) jo § ajns YiIm pead 6ZT uoidas Jo (g) uoildas-gns 03 osinoad 354 01 JUeNsIng)
T-00V wuo4
| @InXauuy

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.

:022-26529100 / 69019100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com

Tel.



B g
=2, 2
E L5
S22
85
SN
.WB/.,
o .M
w 0
£
T .
=58
8= =
= O
T
(=]
..h....m
" s
QY —
T iE .8
20 3
L w3
nen
il =

Entero

Road, Faridabad, Haryana - 121003
CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204

Healthcare Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

(uol)jiw *sy ui sunowy)

%00T %00T %001 %001 BuipjoyaJeys jo %
= - - - puapialg pasodoud
JeaA ayj 104
(89'1) 9g'T (98°1) 90'T xel Jayy (sso7) 10 yoig
- 990 = 0T 0 uoI1exe) J0j UOISINOIg
(89°1) e (98'1) wT Xe} 210J2q (s501) / 13014
LL9T LY0ET 06°9¢ vr'v8 Jaaouun|
- - & - S1UBLWIISIAL]
¥€999 12999 1518 vI8L san|Iqel| |e301
TL 799 £9°L99 SL6L 0gE'6L S19sSe |eloL
(89°T) 98T (98'1) 90T snidins 3 sanlasay
SO0 010 0T'0 010 lendeD aseys
[440r4 et T20¢C Tc0T paJinboe sem
-IBIA-TO -ga4-10 -3Q-1¢ -28Q-€0 | AeIpisgns uaym aouls a1eq
eays.ied sie|ndijed

Blwey S ) 1dINS adyy sawenN

TT0T ‘T€ Y2JBA PapUa Jeah [edpueuly 3yY3 40} SBLIBIPISGNS JO JUSWSLE]S [BIDUBULY 3Y] JO S34N3RS) JUaIjES SUIUIEIUOI JUSWIAIR)S
(rTOZ ‘sa|ny (s3unoooy) saluedwo) Jo § ajnJ Yyum peas 6ZT U0 Jo (£) uondas-gns oy osinoad 1541} 01 JueNsIng)

T-20V wuo4
] 2inxauuy

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.

:022-26529100 / 690192100, Email Id : info@enterohealthcare.com, Website : www.enterohealthcare.com

Tel.



Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

E -t Reg. Office. : Plot No. I-35, Building - B,
n ero Industrial Area, Phase |, 13/7, Mathura
Healthcare Solutions Pvt. Ltd. Road, Faridabad, Haryana - 121003
CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204

Annexure Il
Particulars of inter corporate deposit, investments and corporate guarantees:

Inter corporate deposit (ICD):

S. Name of the Gross amount of ICD granted Balance/outstanding
No. Company during the year amount of ICD as at end
(Rs. In million) of the financial year
(Rs. In million)
1. Novacare 180.00 215.94
2. GS 55.50 125.69
3. RSM 34.00 112.06
4. Galaxystar 16.00 72.44
5. Sundarlal 5.00 79.62
6. Chhabra - 80.94
7. Getwell 20.00 106.13
8. Avenues 10.00 321.10
9. Barros - 81.53
10. CHSPL 3.00 62.70
11. CPPL 10.00 99.15
12, Chirag 10.00 90.58
13. laggi 5.00 158.07
14, Millennium 30.00 199.98
185, Rada 6.00 95.90
16. | Sesha Balajee 13.10 124.36
17. | SVMED 53.70 107.59
18. Vasavi 14.50 112.04
19. Calcutta 10.64 17.40
20. Curever 287.40 104.20
21. SVMPL 10.40 35.35
22. CPDPL 0.50 11.00
23. CPD 9.49 20.44
24, AHSPL 36.10 36.10
25, City Pharma 34.70 34.70
26. RRPD 59.30 59.30
27 NSAPL 65.90 65.90
28. | SriParshva 547.09 243.69
29. | SriRama 122.03 122.03
30. SMPL 62.30 62.30
31 WHSPL 187.50 137.50
Investments:
The details of amounts of investment made by the Company as on financial year ended March 31, 5

2022 are as follows:

S No Company Amount (Rs. In million)
1. Novacare 110.00

Corporate Office : Unit No. 605 & 606, 6th Floor, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.
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SNo Company Amount (Rs. In million)

2. GS 36.00
3. RSM 47.70
4. Galaxystar 48.00
5. Sundarlal 23.00
6. Chhabra 35.00
T Getwell 68.00
8. Avenues 0.10
9. Chirag 1.00
10. Jaggi 0.10
11, CHSPL 1.00
12. Vasavi 0.10
13; SVMED 0.10
14. CPPL 3.00
15. Millennium 0.10
16. Rada 0.10
17. Sesha Balajee 0.10
18. Barros 0.10
19. Quromed 0.10
20. Rimedio 0.10
21 Calcutta 0.10
22 CPDPL 0.10
23. CPD 10.10
24, Curever 0.10
25. SVMPL 0.10
26. WHSPL 0.10
27, AHSPL 0.10
28. City Pharma 0.10
29. SMPL 0.10
30. NSAPL 0.10
31. RRPD 0.10
32. Sri Rama 0.10
33. Sri Parshva 0.10
34. ZSSPL 0.10

Corporate Guarantee

The details of maximum amounts of corporate guarantee provided by the Company to the Banks for
working capital facilities granted to following entities are as follows:

S No | Name of the Outstanding amount of corporate Overall amounts of
Company guarantee at the end of financial year corporate guarantee
(Amounts Rs. In million) provided
(Amounts Rs. In million)
i Novacare 433,44 500.00
2. Getwell 76.74 150.00
3. Avenues 250.28 350.00
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S No | Name of the Outstanding amount of corporate Overall amounts of
Company guarantee at the end of financial year corporate guarantee
(Amounts Rs. In million) provided
(Amounts Rs. In million)

4 CHSPL 17.23 50.00
5, Chirag 84.29 150.00
6. RSM 189.16 250.00
7 GS 72.65 80.00
8 Chhabra 39.48 50.00
9, Sundarlal 21.16 70.00
10. | Galaxystar 84.01 150.00
11. | Jaggi 85.55 120.00
12. | CPPL 59.42 150.00
13. Millennium 128.55 150.00
14. | SVMED 80.26 150.00
15. | Vasavi 61.11 150.00
16. Barros 34.61 67.00
17 Sesha Balajee 48.03 150.00
18. | WHSPL 22.89 80.00
18. Sri Rama 226.62 226.62
20. | SriParshva 303.64 303.64
21, Curever 200.00 200.00
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and the Statement of Profit and Loss,
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2022 and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Director’s report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

Siia” he Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
1. tathe preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
-'*:.on, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
aceo l ting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section
OB the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
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the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31 , 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure C”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

1. The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

2. The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
as on the date of this audit report, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

3. Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the information and explanations provided
to us by the Management in this regard nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under
(1) and (2) above, contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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3. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 197 of the
Act and the rules thereunder are not applicable to the Company as it is a private Company.

For MS K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Partner

Membership No. 049902
UDIN: 22049902BAGSTG1851
Place: Mumbai

Date: October 19, 2022
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ENTERO HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For MS K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 22049902BAGSTG1851
Place: Mumbai
Date: October 19, 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ENTERO HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditors’ Report]

1
(a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) All the Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the previous year in
accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no immovable properties, and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its property, plant
and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and its intangible assets. Accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or pending against
the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

if.

(a) The Company has a system of physical verification of inventory whereby all items of inventory are
physically verified weekly. Discrepancies, if any between physical stock and book records are adjusted
in the books as and when the verifications and corresponding reconciliations are carried out. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification, coverage & procedure of such verification is reasonable and
appropriate. Discrepancies noted on perpetual physical verification carried out during the year were not
material and have been adjusted in books of accounts.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.50 Millions in aggregate from
financial Institution on the basis of security of its entire current assets and movable fixed assets. Quarterly
returns / statements have not been filed with financial institution during the year, hence we are unable
to comment if there any discrepancies between balance as per books and balance as per quarterly returns
sent to financial institutions under this clause.
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jii. a) According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has provided loans or provided
advances in the nature of loans, or given guarantee, or provided security to any other entity.

(A) The details of such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and
Associates are as follows:
{Amounts in Rs Millions)
Guarantees Security Loans Advances

Aggregate amount
granted/provided
during the year
- Subsidiaries 1,840.95 - 1,899.15
- Joint Ventures - - -
- Associates - - - -
Balance Outstanding
as at balance sheet
date in respect of
above cases

- Subsidiaries 3,790.95 - 3,195.73 -

Joint Ventures | -
- Associates - - -

(B) The details of such loans or advances and guarantees or security to parties other than subsidiary, joint
ventures and associates are as follows:
(Amounts in Rs Millions)
Guarantees Security Loans Advances

Aggregate amount
granted/provided
during the year
- Others - . " »

Balance Outstanding
as at balance sheet
date in respect of
above cases

- Others - - 0.72 .

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed
by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions in relation to investments made, guarantees
provided, securities given and grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loan and guarantees are not
prejudicial to the interest of the company.

c) In case of the loans and advances in the nature of loan, schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest have not been stipulated since the loan and interest is repayable on demand. In the absence of
stipulation of repayment terms we are unable to comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and
payment of interest.

d) There are no amounts overdue for more than ninety days in respect of the loan granted to related parties.
e) According to the information explanation provided to us, the loan or advance in the nature of  loan

, 1% granted has not fallen due during the year. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii) (e) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.
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f) According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has granted loans/advances in the
nature of loans repayable on demand. The details of the same are as follows:

(Amounts in INR Millions)
All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Aggregate amount of
loans/ advances in
nature of loans

- Repayable on 3,196.44 - 3,195.73
demand (A)

- Agreement does
not specify any - - -
terms or period of
repayment (B)
Total (A+B) 3,196.44 - 3,195.73
Percentage of loans/
advances in nature of 100% - 99.98%
loans to the total
loans

iv. In our opinion According to the information & explanation given to us, the company has complied with
provisions of section 185 and section 186 of the Act, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security
made.

V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from
the public within the meaning of sections 73, 74,75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under.

vi.  The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the Central
Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products of the
Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in clause 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vii.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, cess have been regularly deposited by the Company with appropriate authorities in
all cases during the year. Statutory dues on account of, service tax, duty of excise and value added tax are
not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute. Statutory dues on account of sales-tax, service tax, duty of excise
and value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

vili.  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not accounted
in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in Tax
Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been now recorded
in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company. , .4

B
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ix.
(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of term
loans during the year have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an
overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the standalone financial
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from an any entity or person
on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that
the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its securities, joint
ventures or associate companies.

(a) Inour opinion and according to the information explanation given to us, the Company did not raise any money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has made preferential allotment and private placement of shares
during the year and the requirements of Section 42 and section 62 of the Act have been complied with. The
amount raised has been used for the purposes for which they were raised.

Xi.

(a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
we report that no material fraud by the Company nor on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the course of our audit.

(b) We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company during the
course of audit of the standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022, accordingly the
provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the course of audit. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to Company.

Xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company. 2 3

ol
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xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of the Act. The details of
such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards. Further, in our opinion, the company is not required to constitute audit committee
under section 177 of the Act.

xiv. In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not require to comply with provision of
section 138 of the Act. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xiv) (a) to (b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the Company has
not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and hence,
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

—

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable

to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph
clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of
India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company does not have any CIC as part of its group. Hence the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3
xvi (d) of the order are not applicable to the Company

Xvii. Based on the overall review of financial statements, the Company has incurred cash losses in the current
financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. The details of the same are as follows.
(Amount in INR Millions)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(Current Year) (Previous Year)
Cash Loss (315.73) (106.83)

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in
paragraph clause 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of financial ratios,
ageing and expected date of realisation of financial assets and payment of liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report and the
Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

xx.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. Hence, the provisions of paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.
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xxi.  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in the report.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 047W

s
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Partner

Membership No. 049902
UDIN: 22049902BAGSTG1851
Place: Mumbai

Date: October 19, 2022
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ENTERO HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited on the Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Entero
Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control with reference to
standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The prggggyres selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstafement- @Qe standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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Chartered Accountants

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registratio;

Partner
Membershjp No. 049902
UDIN: 22049902BAGSTG1851
Place: Mumbai

Date: October 19, 2022
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Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes PR gL hsmt
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 471.04 479.36
Other Intangible assets 6 43,15 22.53
Intangible asset under development 7 0.54 22.40
Financial assets
Investments in subsidiaries 8 394.30 387.05
Other financial assets 9 28.17 30.06
Deferred tax asset (net) 10 - -
Non Current tax assets (net) 11 30.95 2135
Totel non-current assets 968.15 962.75
Current assets
Inventories 12 362.29 473.86
Financial assets
Investments 13 - -
Trade receivables 14 522.30 308.55
Cash and cash equivalents 15 302.02 162.19
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 16 580.41 504.41
Loans 17 3,196.45 2,429.67
Other financial assets 18 312,11 239.94
Other current assets 19 297.10 245.69
Total current assets 5,572.68 4,364.31
Total assets 6,540.83 5,327.06
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 20 38.50 1.00
Instrument engirely equity in nature 21 6,189.90 5, 174:42
Other equity 22 {716.35) (307.75)
Total equity 5,512.05 4,864.37
Linhilitias
Nonr-currant labilities
Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities 24 221.72 205.59
Provisions 25 16.07 9.03
Tatal non-current liabilities 237.79 214.62
Current liahilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 23 300.00 -
Lease Liabilities 24 33.24 26.25
Trade payabhles 26
iJtotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 373 1.72
iijtotal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and small enterprise 343.77 127.68
Other financial liabilities 27 71.06 56.63
Other current liabilities 28 17.37 27.21
Provisions 25 21.82 8.58
Total current liahilities 790.99 248.07
Total liabilities 1,028.78 462.69
Total equity and liabilities 6,540.83 5,327.06
See accompanying notes to the financial statemeits 1-52
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For M S K A & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204

a
rabhdt Agrawal m Jayant Prakash

Managing Director Director Company Secretary
DIN: 07466382 DIN: 07077034 M.N.:FCS-6742
Place: Mumbai

Date: 19 October 2022

Firm Registration No.:10504 A

Vaijayantimala Belsare
Partner
Membership No: 049902
Place: Mumbai

Date: 19 October 2022




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount ir Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the Year ended  For the Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income
Revenue from operations 29 1,372.86 1,048.68
Other income 30 268.72 234.28
Total income 1,641.58 1,282.96
Expenses
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 31 1,172.79 1,180.75
Changes in inventories of Stock-in-trade 32 111.57 (202.71)
Employee benefits expense 33 379.20 231.88
Finance costs 34 52.90 22.58
Depreciation and amortization expense 35 87.13 73.46
Other expenses 36 246.46 158.52
Total expenses 2,050.05 1,464.48
Loss before tax (408.47) (181.52)
Tax expense
Current tax 37 i g
Deferred tax 37 -
Total income tax expense - -
Loss for the year (408.47) (181.52)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plan (0.12) (0.32)
Income tax effect = g
Total (0.12) (0.32)
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss ¥
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (0.12) (0.32)
Total comprehensive expense for the year (408.59) (181.84)
Loss per share 38
Basic (INR) (261.99) (1,811.60)
Diluted (INR) (261.99) (1,811.60)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-52
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For M S K A & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Firm Registration No.:105Q047W CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204

‘ry 'i:aydf M}A

PrabRat Agrawal Prem Sethi Prakash

Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No: 049902 DIN: 07466382 DIN: 07077034 M.N.:FCS-6742
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 19 October 2022 Date: 19 October 2022



Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity share capital
Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year
Changes in Equity Share capital during the year
Balance at the end of the year

(B) Other equity

Particulars

Balance as at 31 March 2020
Changes during the year

Issued during the year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2021
Changes during the year
Issued during the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2022

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For M S K A & Associates

Chartered Accountants
istration No.:105047

Firm

Vaijayantimal
Partner
Membership No: 049902
Place: Mumbai

Date: 19 October 2022

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1.00 1.00
37.50 -
38.50 1.00
Reserve and
Instrument entirely equity in surplus Total
nature - "
Retained earnings

4,387.12 (125.91) 4,261.21
784.00 - 784.00

. (181.52) (181.52)

- (0.32) (0.32)

- (181.84) (181.84)

5,171.12 (307.75) 4,863.37
1,018.78 - 1,018.78

- (408.48) (408.48)

- (0.12) (0.12)

- (408.60) 610.18
6,189.90 (716.35) 5,473.55

1-52

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204 ?a
(e
A R
yL sl Q-wkc\.l/{'\

Prabhat Agrawa Prem Sethi Jayatit Prakash
Managing Director Director Company Secretary
DIN: 07466382 DIN: 07077034 M.N.:FC5-6742

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 October 2022




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Standalone Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

G Nl For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (408.47) (181.52)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 87.13 73.46
Finance cost 52.90 22.58
Interest income (259.55) (228.10)
Provision for expected credit loss 5.60 1.23
Provision for sales return 12.51 (7.51)
Provision for retirement benefits and leave obligation 7.64 6.21
Operating loss before working capital changes (502.24) (313.65)
Changes in working capital
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 218.09 (3.34)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventory 111.57 (202.71)
Increase in trade receivables (219.34) (135.04)
(Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilities (9.84) 2.67
Increase in other financial liabilities 14.43 24.77
Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assets 1.35 (3.10)
Increase in other current assets (51.40) (56.02)
Cash used in operations (437.38) (686.42)
Income tax refund (including advance tax & TDS) (9.60) 4.47
Net cash flows used in operating activities (A) (446.98) (681.95)
Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of non-current investments (7.25) (9.15)
Loans (repayment)/availed (766.78) 72.89
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, including movement in CWIP and capital advances (25.83) (65.47)
Net fixed deposit made " (76.00) (228.41)
Interest received 187.91 158.05
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (687.95) (72.09)
Cash flow from Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of convertible preference shares 1,018.78 784.00
Proceeds from issuance of equity share 37.50
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 300.00 -
Principal paid on lease liabilities (28.62) (6.44)
Interest paid on lease liabilities {22.33) (13.24)
Interest paid (30.57) (9.34)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C ) 1,274.76 754.98
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 139.83 0.94
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 162.19 161.25
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 302.02 162.19
Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 15)
Balances with banks
On current accounts 301.98 162.15
Cash on hand 0.04 0.04
Total cash and bank balances at end of the year 302.02 162.19
For the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Opening balance

Cash credit facility

Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Total Changes from financing cash flows

Movement

Cash flows-Cash Credit facility
Interest paid

Interest expenses

Closing Balance
Cash credit facility
Interest accrued and due on borrowings

300.00
(29.17)
29.17

300.00

300.00




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

standalone Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7, Statement of
Cash Flows as specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 2015 (as amended).

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term halances (with an original maturity of three

months or less from the date of acquisition).

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.:105047wW

Vaijayant
Partner
Membership No: 049902
Place: Mumbai

Date: 19 October 2022

1-52

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204

7

Prabhat Agr: P Sethi
Managing Difector Director
DIN: 07466382 DIN: 07077034

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 October 2022

e}

et B

Jayant Prakash
Company Secretary

M.N.:FC5-6742




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1. General Information
Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (the “Company”) is a private limited company domiciled in
India having its registered office at Faridabad, Haryana and was incorporated on 10 January 2018 under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable in India. The Company’s business includes
composite range of activities viz. marketing and distribution of Surgical, pharmaceutical products and

other allied services.

2. Significant accounting policies
Significant accounting policies adopted by the company are as under:

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

A. Statement of Compliance with IND AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires
a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

These financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors on 19 October 2022.

B. Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for
the following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:-
e Certain Financial assets are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial
instruments)
e Employee’s Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarial valuation.




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

C. Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.
Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfied any of the following criteria:
it is expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the group's normal operating
cycle;
it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.
Liabilities 7
A liahility is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
it is expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the group's’ normal operating
cycle;
it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
it is due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date . Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty,
result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current,

D. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimate and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance
Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of contingent
liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying
financial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates, if any, are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years
affected. Refer Note No 3 for detailed discussion on estimates and judgments.




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts, rebates, input tax credit (IGST/
CGST and SGST) or any other tax credit available to the company are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that future economic benefit associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of property, plant and
equipment that takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized up to
the date such asset is ready for use.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Transition to IND AS:

On Transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying values of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognised as of 01 April 2019 (the transition date) measured as per the
Indian GAAP and use such carrying values as its deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment as on
the transition date.

Depreciation on plant, property and equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straightline method at their respective
estimated useful lives, which is in line with the estimated useful lives as specified in Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013.

**Based on technical evalution, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best
represent the period over which the management expects to use these to use these assets. Hence the
useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescriped under part C of schedule Il of
the Act.




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Useful Life as per prescribed in
Schedule Il of the Act (year)

Leasehold Improvement* Lease Period

Computer and peripherals** 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Office equipment

Vehicle
Plant and Machineries 15
Electrical Installations and Equipment 10

*Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or uselful life whichever is lower.
Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of
acquisition. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property plant and equipment is provided up to the date
preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

2.3 Other Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.

The cost comprises purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use which includes any trade discounts, rebates, input tax credit (IGST/ CGST and SGST)
or any other tax credit available to the company are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of intangible asset that
takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized from the date it meets
capitalization criteria till such asset is ready for use.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If
the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization
period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

A summary of amortization period applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

Particulars Useful life (years)
5-10

Computer software




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.4 Fair value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

P In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

P In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
accessible to the Company.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The Company's management determines the policies and
procedures for fair value measurement.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

2.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue from Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, price
concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in
the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the recovery of consideration is probable
and determinable.

Revenue is recognized at a point in time when the goods and consumables are delivered at the agreed
point of delivery which generally is the premises of the customer.




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Other Income

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the applicable interest rate. Interest Income is recognised on a basis of effective interest method as set
out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability or
collectability exists.

Marketing Support

Marketing support income is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts,
incentives, performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or
other similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided
the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable.

2.6 Taxes
a) Current Income Tax:
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the year end date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred Tax:

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in financial statements.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and
losses.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred taxis recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comptBhERSag income or directly in equity, respectively. \




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.7 Intangible asset under development
The Company capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological
and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a
defined milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts
to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of
the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

2.8 Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for warehouse and office. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of properties
that are having non-cancellable lease term of less than 12 months. The Company recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.9 Inventories
The inventory comprises of traded goods which are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventory of traded goods is arrived based on actual cost by batch which comprises cost of
purchases and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

necessary.
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2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each year end whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial
asset or a group of non financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset's recoverahle amount and the amount of impairment loss.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable
amount. Losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and reflected in an allowance account.
When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash in flows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the
“Cash-Generating Unit” - CGU).

2.11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present
value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date.
These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that probably will not require an outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation

cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term
deposits net of bank overdraft with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand
and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months.

2.13 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(A) Financial assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Atinitial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
“at fair value through profit or loss” are measured at transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortized cost; or

b) at fair value through other comprehensive income; or

c) at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the related cash flows.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair_value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amounts are taken through Other Comprehensive Income (‘ocr),
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from equity to
Statement of Profit and Loss and recognized in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial

Vi

“\ /5
Nx




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI
are measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss. Interest income from these financial

assets is included in “Other income”.

Equity instruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in OCI subsequent changes in
the fair value in other comprehensive income . The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OClI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at
amortized cost and FVOCI.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
1notincreased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12 month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECLis the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be
estimated reliably, then the entity i tfag to use the remaining contractual term of the financial

instrument.
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In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the
payment is more than 90 days past due.

ECLimpairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income/expense
in the statement of profit and loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amortized cost
is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

a) the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or

b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the financial asset is transferred then in that case financial asset is derecognized only if
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is transferred. Where the entity
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognized.

(B) Financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss and at amortized cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(ii)Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated
peemium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part

by taking into account any discount g
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(iii) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as
finance costs.

(C) Embedded Derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-
derivative host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary
in a way similar to a standalone derivative. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are
separated if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss.

(D) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.14 Employee Benefits

(a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the year and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

(i) Defined contribution plan
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Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the
Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis
which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state insurance scheme is made
to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified
as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the
contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the 'Gratuity Plan") covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment,
of an amount based on the respective employee's salary. The Company's liability is actuarially
determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are
recognized in the other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or
encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The
obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences
as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company's liability
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Leaves under define benefit plans can be encashed only on discontinuation of service by employee.

2.15 Foreign Currency Transactions
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the transaction
date and settlement date are recognisgdyin.the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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2.16

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate
prevailing at the year end and the exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The weighted average numbers of equity shares are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in the rightsissue, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant accounting Judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years.

3.1 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the year
end date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

i)Recognition of deferred tax assets & Liabilities:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future temporary differences between the
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, depreciation carry-forwards and
tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and depreciation carry-forwards could be
utilized. The position will be reviewed at each reporting period and will be recognised when the
probability improves.
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ii) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits and leave encashment)

The cost of the defined benefit plans such as gratuity and leave encashment are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature,
a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each year end.

The principal assumptions are the discount and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the
market yields available on government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of
liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors on long term basis.

iii)Intangible asset under development

The Company capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological
and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a defined
milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts to be
capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount
rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

iv)impairment of Non Financial Assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-
generating units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them.
Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of
a suitable discount rate.

v) Sales Return

The Group accounts for sales returns accrual by recording sales return provision concurrent with the
recognition of revenue at the time of a product sale. This liability is based on the Group’s estimate of
expected sales returns. Accordingly, the estimate of sales returns is determined primarily by the Group’s
historical experience of sales returns.

At the time of recognising the sales return provision, the Group also recognises purchase return provision
,an asset, (i.e., the right to the returned goods) which is included in Other Current assets for the products
expected to be returned. The Group initially measures this asset at the former carrying amount of the
inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value
of the returned goods. Along with re-measuring the refund liability at the end of each reporting period,
the Group updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of
returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of the returned products.
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4. Standards issued but not effective:

The amendments are proposed to be effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 01 April
2021:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of
items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted
from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and
equipment.

Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — The amendment specifies that the
‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate
directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct
labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example
would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract).

The Company believes there will be no impact on its financial statements of these amendments.

All amounts disclosed in financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest INR
millions as per requirement of Schedule Ill of the Act, unless otherwise stated.
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8 Investments in Subsidiaries

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unquoted equity shares measured at cost (fully paid up) No of shares Value No of shares Value
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 26,00,000 36.00 36,00,000 36.00
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 1,10,00,000 110.00 1,10,00,000 110.00
Getwell Medicare Soiution Private Limited 68,00,000 68.00 68,00,000 68.00
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited 10,000 48.00 10,000 48.00
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 10,000 35.00 10,000 35.00
RSM Pharma Private Limited 15,00,000 47.70 15,00,000 47.70
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited 10,000 23.00 10,000 23.00
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited 1,00,000 1.00 1,00,000 1.00
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 1,00,000 1.00 1,00,000 1.00
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
SVMED Solutions Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Chethana Pharma Private Limited 3,00,000 3.00 3,00,000 3.00
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Rada Medisolutions Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Barros Enterprises Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Chethana pharma Distributors Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
CPD Pharma Private Limited 10,000 10.10 10,000 10.10
Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Curever Pharma Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Rirmedio Pharma Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Quromed Life Sciences Private Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Pvr Ltd 10,000 0.10 = -
Western Health Care Solutions Private Limited 15,000 0.15 5 -
City Pharma Distributors Private Limited 10,000 0.10
Zenex Software Solutions Private Limited 10,000 0.10
Swami Medisolutions Private Limited 10,000 0.10 - -
New RRPD Private Limited 10,000 0.10
New Siva Agencies Private Limited 10,000 0.10 -
Sri Parshva Pharma Distributors Private Limited 10,000 0.10 - -
Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 5,000 0.05 - s
Guarantee Commission - 9.20 - 2.85
Total (equity instruments) 2,36,70,000 394.30 2,35,80,000 387.05
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No of shares Value No of shares Value
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments before impairment 2,36,70,000 385.10 2,35,80,000 384.20

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investment - - - -
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9  Other financial assets
Particulars As at sk
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits 28.17 30.06
Total 28.17 30,06
10 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net)
Particulars hsat fsat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Expenses provided but allowable in Income Tax on paymerit basis 2.28 2.72
On Ind AS Adjustment 7.59 6.99
Gratuity & Leave Encashment 4,18 0.97
Expected Credit Loss Provision 1.84 -
Unabsorbed depreciation 106.08 0.38
Unabsorbed loss 49.96
Deferred tax liability on account of:
Timing difference between tax depreciation and depreciation charged in the books (1.15) (3.20)
Net deferred tax assets(Liabilities) 170.78 7.85
Total = "
10.1 Note (a): Summary of deferred tax assets/({liabilities)
—— As at (Charged)/ (Charged)/ As at
31 March 2021 Credited to P & L Credited to OCI 31 March 2022
Timing difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation charged in the books {3.20) 2.05 (1.15)
Expenses provided but allowable in Income Tax on payment basis 272 (0.44) 2.28
On Ind AS 116 Adjustment 6.99 0.60 - 7.59
Gratuity & Leave Encashment 0.97 3.22 - 4,18
Expected Credit Loss Provision - 1.84 1.84
Unabsorbed depreciation 0.38 105.70 106.08
Unabsorbed loss - 49.96 49,96
Net Net deferred tax assets/(liability) 7.85 162.93 - 170.78
The company has unabseorbed business losses and depreciation which according to management will be used to set off taxable profit arising in the next few years from
operations of the company. However, recognition of deferred tax assets has been restricted to the extent of deferred tax liabilities (Previous Year Rs Nil) due to absence of
reasonable certainty of the ability to set off carry forward lesses and unabsorbed deoreciation against taxable profit in the immediate future. The position will be reviewed
at each reporting period and will be recognised whean the probability improves.
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
11 Non current Tax assets (Net)
Advance income tax (Net) 30.95 21.35
Total 30.95 21.35
12 Inventories*®
At lower of cost and net realizable value
Stock in trade [Include Goods-in-transit of INR 12.77 million (previous year INR 532.02 million] 362.29 473.86
Total 362.29 473.86
[(include one time inventory write down provision of INR 116.59 million( previous year INR 271.39 million))
*Inventory pledged as security by the Company, refer note 23
13 Current Investment
Investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted) at FVTPL:
Total . “
Particulars el At
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No of units Value No of units Value

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of
investment
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14  Trade receivable

Particulars Axm Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured
-Considered good 522.30 308.55
-Having significant increase in Credit Risk 7.07 1.47
529.36 310.02
Less:- Expected loss allowances (7.07) (1.47)
Total 522,30 308.55
Further classified as:
Receivable from related parties (Refer note 47) 276.89 129.87
Receivable from others 245.40 178.68
522.30 308.55
Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2022
.lg:-)agsmsputed (i) Undisputed Trade (i) Undisputed (iv) Disputed Trade (v) Disputed
3 . ) Receivable -Which  Trade Receivable - R Trade Receivable -
Particulars/Due from Date of transaction Receivable - o . Receivable - )
. have significant Considered y Considered
Considered ) ) . Considered Good
increase in credit risk Doubtful Doubtful
Good
Less Than 6 Months 310.32 - -
6 Months to 1 Year 125.74 - -
1-2 Years 86.24 1.24 -
2-3 Years - 5.83 -
3 More Years - - -
Total 522.30 7.07 2 2 -

As at 31 March 2021

(i) Undisputed (i) Undisputed (i) Undisputed

(v) Disputed

Trade Trade Receivable - S——— (iv) Disputed Trade e
Particulars/Due from Date of transaction Receivable - Which have ; Receivable - 2RI
. Lo . . Considered ) Considered
Considered significant increase in Considered Good
e Doubtful Doubtful
Good credit risk
Less Than 6 Months 160.89 = <
6 Months to 1 Year 125.21 - -
1-2 Years 22.45 1.43 -
2-3 Years - 0.04 -
3 More Years - - -
Total 308.55 1.47 - - =
15 Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at

Particulars

Balances with banks:
On current accounts
Cash on hand

Total

16 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalent
In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 3 months but less than
12 months from balance sheet date

Total

17 Current financial assets - Loans
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to related party (Refer Note 47)
Total

Loans to subsidiary
Loans to other than subsidiary
Total

18 Other financial assets
Interest accrued on ICD (Refer note 47)
Interest accrued on FD
Staff advance
Total

19 Other current assets
Advance to suppliers
Less : Provision for doubtful advances
Balance with government authorities
Prepaid Expenses
Other Receivables
Provision for purchase return
Total

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

301.98 162.15
0.04 0.04
302.02 162.19
580.41 504.41
580.41 504.41
3,196.45 2,429.67
3,196.45 2,429.67
3,195.75 2,428.98
0.69 0.69
3,196.45 2,429.67
295.65 233.13
15.22 6.11
1.24 0.70
312,11 239.94
44.21 36.51
: (0.09)
174.88 163.17
64.75 36.89
0.01 3.08
13.25 6.13
297.10 245.69
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20 Equity Share capital

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a. Authorised Share Capital
40,00,000 ( 31 March 2021: 2,50,000) Equity Shares of INR 10 each 40.00 2.50
Total 40.00 2.50
b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

38,50,200 ( 31 March 2021: 1,00,200) Equity Shares of INR 10 each 38.50 1.00
Total 38.50 1.00
c. Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at As at As at

the beginning and at the end of the year 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particulars No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,00,200 1.00 1,00,200 1.00
Add: Issued during the year 37,50,000 37.50 - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 38,50,200 38.50 1,00,200 1.00

d. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. The company declares and
pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the
event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

e, Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at As at
Name of the shareholder 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No of shares % No of shares %
Mr. Prabhat Agrawal 25,60,000 66.49 60,000 59.90
Mr. Prem Sethi 12,90,000 33.50 40,000 39.90

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

f. Shareholding of Promoters at the end of the year

Name of the Promoter As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

% of Total % Change During % Change During

0,
No. of Share SHSFE —— No. of Share % of Total Shares T
Mr. Prabhat Agrawal 25,60,000 66.49 41.67 60,000 59.90 -
Mr. Prem Sethi 12,90,000 33.50 31.25 40,000 39.90 -

g-No class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration other than cash by the company during the period of two years immediately preceding the current
period end.

h. No class of shares have been bought back by the company during the period of twa years immediately preceding the current year end.

i. Private Placement allotment
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has issued and allotted 37,50,000 equity shares of face value Rs 10/- each to the eligible equity shareholders at an issue
price of Rs, 10/- per Equity Share aggregating to Rs. 37.50 millions.

21 Insturments entirely equity in nature
Preference share capital

As at As at

Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

a. Authorised Share Capital

0.0001% Compulsory Convertible Preference shares (CCPS)

Series A1 CCPS (March 22 : 49,54,99,900 ; March 21 : 39,54,99,900) of INR 10 each 4,955.00 3,955.00
Series A2 CCPS (March 22 : 16,94,99,900 ; March 21 : 16,94,99,900) of INR 10 each ‘ 1,695.00 1,695.00
Series A3 CCPS (March 22 : 35,00,000 ; March 21 : 29,00,000 ) of INR 10 each 35.00 29.00
Series A4 CCPS (March 22 : 3,18,50,200 ; March 21 : 3,18,50,200) of INR 10 each 318.50 318.50
Total 7,003.50 5,997.50

b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

Series A1 CCPS (March 22 : 44,19,99,900 ; March 21 : 368,999,900) of INR 10 each 4,420.00 3,690.00
Series A2 CCPS (March 22 : 15,09,26,729 ; March 21 : 125,999,900 ) of INR 10 each 1,509.27 1,260.00
Series A3 CCPS (1 ¥99%9;00,000 ; March 21 : 29,00,000) of INR 10 each ; 29.00 29.00
Series A4 CCF"%‘__% 347 ; March 21 : 19,212,500) of INR 10 each ) 7 231.63 192.13
Total < ' 6,189.90 517112
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23

¢. Reconciliation of preterence shares As at As at

outstanding at the beginning and at the end of 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particulars No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 51,71,12,300 517112 43,87,12,300 4,387.12
Add: Issued during the year 10,18,77,676 1,018.78 7,84,00,000 784.00
Outstanding at the end of the year 61,89,89,976 6,189.90 51,71,12,300 5,171.12

d. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

0.0001% Compulsory Convertible Preference shares (CCPS)

Terms of Conversion :

(a) The holders of the CCPS may convert the CCPS in whole or part into into 1 (one) Equity Share at any time before the expiry of 19 (nineteen) years from the date of
issuance of the same subject to the adjustments as mentioned in Articles of Association, and the provisions of the Shareholders’ Agreement. In the event the conversion of
CCPS entitles the holder of CCPS to any fraction of an Equity Share, then such fraction shall be rounded up to the nearest whole number.

(b) The holders of CCPS shall, at any time prior to 19 (nineteen) years from the date of issuance of the same, be entitled to call upon the Company to convert all or any of the
CCPS. The CCPS, or any of them, if not converted earlier, shall automatically convert into Equity Shares at the then applicable conversion rate.

Senior Rights: The holders of A1 CCPS, A2 CCPS and A3 CCPS shall rank senior to Series A4 CCPS and all other preference shares and other instruments that are outstanding
and which may be issued by the Company from time to time.

Meeting and voting rights: The holders of CCPS shall be entitled to attend meetings of all Shareholders of the Company and, will be entitled to such voting rights on an As If
Converted Basis, as may be permissible under Applicable Law.Accordingly, but subject to adjustments as set forth herein, the holders of CCPS shall be entitled to the same
number of votes for each CCPS as a holder of 1 (one) Equity Share would have on each Equity Share held, provided however that in the event of any adjustment in conversion
the number of votes associated with each CCP$ will change accordingly. The holders of CCPS shall be entitled to vote on all such matters which affect their rights directly or
indirectly.

e. Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at As at
Name of the shareholder 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No of shares % No of shares %
Series A1 CCPS are issued to Orbimed Asia Il Mauritius Limited 44,19,99,900 100.00% 36,89,99,900 100.00%
Series A2 CCPS are issued to | M Investments Trust 15,09,26,729 100.00% 12,59,99,900 100.00%
Series A3 CCPS are issued to Mr. Prabhat Agrawal 17,40,000 60.00% 17,40,000 60.00%
Series A3 CCPS are issued to Mr. Prem Sethi 11,60,000 40.00% 11,60,000 40.00%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to Novacare Drug Specialities Private Limited 57,49,593 24.82% 48,00,000 24.98%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to K E Prakash 53,90,244 23.27% 45,00,000 23.42%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to Mr. Petros Diamantides 20,51,287 8.86% 17,12,500 8.91%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to R Prashanth 17,96,748 7.76% 15,00,000 7.81%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to Manoj K Sanghani 16,47,019 7.11% 13,75,000 7.16%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to Vikram Aditya Ambre 16,47,019 7.11% 13,75,000 7.16%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to Hemant Barros 11,97,832 5.17% 10,00,000 5.20%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to Millennium Medicare Private Limited 11,97,832 5.17% 10,00,000 5.20%
f. Shareholding of Promoters at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Name of the Promoter No. of Share Mnrast o ChanFe During No. of Share % of Total Shares * Chan.ge Badng
Shares the Period the Period

Mr. Prabhat Agrawal 17,40,000 60.00% - 17,40,000 60.00% -
Mr. Prem Sethi 11,60,000 40.00% - 11,60,000 40.00% -

h. Private Placement allotment
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has issued and allotted 1,50,000 preference shares ( Series A4 CCPS) of face value Rs 10/- each to the eligible preference
shareholders at an issue price of Rs 10/- per preference share aggregating to Rs. 1.5 million.

h. Right Isuue

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has issued and allotted 10,17,27,676 preference shares ( Series A1 CCPS: 7,30,00,000, Series A2 CCPS: 2,49,26,829,
Series A4 CCPS: 3,80,0,847 ) of face value Rs 10/- each to the eligible preference shareholders at an issue price of Rs 10 per preference share aggregating to Rs. 101728
million.

Other equity
i)Retained Earnings
Particulars s Bzt

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance (307.75) (125.91)
Add:Loss for the year (408.47) (181.52)
Less: Re-measurement (gain)/loss on post employment benefit obligation (net of tax) 0.12 0.32
Closing balance il (716.35) {307.75)
Current Borrowings
Particulars PR EL haat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured
Term Loan \
From Financial Institution * :I 300.00 -
Total \ \ Il 300.00 2
**({Rate of Interest : 12.50%, Nature of security:- First charge on all current assets and movable fixéq-‘ass“é_ts and Cash coflateral of 5.0% in the form of a lien marked fixed
deposit placed in a bank ) NS T e
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24 Lease Liability

i As at As at
Fartialar 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Long term Short term Long term Short term
At amortised cost
Lease Liability 221.72 33.24 205.59 26.25
Total 221.72 33.24 205.59 26.25
25 Provisions
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Long term Short term Long term Short term
a) Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 39)
Provision for gratuity (unfunded) 7.46 0.02 3.71 0.01
Provision for leave encashment (unfunded) 8.61 217 532 1.45
b) Other Provision
Provision for Sales return - 19.63 - 7.11
Total Provisions 16.07 21.82 9.03 8.58
26 Trade payables
Particulars AL s
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and sma!l enterprises 3.73 1.72
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises* 343.77 127.68
Total trade payables 347.50 129.40
Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the information available with the Company:
Particulars Fa Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:
Principal 3.73 1.72
Total 3.73 1.72
(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the payment made - -
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the -
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.
{d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. -
(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act.
* Refer note 47 for trade payables to related parties
Trade Payables ageing schedule
For the year ended 31 March 2022
particulars Outstanding for Following periods from the due date of payment
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
MSME 3.73 - = 3.73
Others 343.77 343.77
Disputed Dues - MSME -
Disputed Dues - Others -
For the Period ended March 2021
Particulars Outstanding for Following periods from the due date of payment
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
MSME 1.72 - - 1.72
Others 127.68 - - 127.68
Disputed Dues - MSME - -
Disputed Dues - Others - -
27 Other financial liabilities
Particulars Asat it
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Employee liabilities 31.74 24,71
Other Financial Liabilities 39.32 31.92
Total other financial liabilities 71.06 56.63
28 Other current liabilities
Statutory due payable 8.14 4,16
Deferred Income 9.20 2.85
Advance from customers 0.03 20.20
Total other current liabilities 17.37 27.21
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29 Revenue from operations

30

31

32

Particulars

Sale of Traded goods

Other operating revenue
Total revenue from operations

Revenue based on Geography
Domestic

Export

Total

Revenue based on timing of recognition
Revenue recognition at a point in time
Revenue recognition at point over time
Total

Details of sales return liabilities:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Provision made during the year, net of reversals
Provision used during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Other income
Interest income
- on fixed deposits designated as amortized cost
- on intercorporate deposit (Refer note 47)
- other interest income
- Interest on unwinding of security deposits
Net gain or loss on foreign currency transaction and translation
Miscellaneous income
Total other income

Purchase of Stock-in-trade
Purchases of Stock-in-trade
Total

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Inventories at the beginning of the year
-Stock in trade

Less: Inventories at the end of the year
-Stock in trade

Net decrease/ (increase)

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

1,328.10 998.96
44.76 49.72
1,372.86 1,048.68
1,372.86 1,048.68
1,372.86 1,048.68
1,372.86 1,048.68
1,372.86 1,048.68
7.11 14.63
19.63 7.11
(7.11) (14.63)
19.63 731
28.34 22.23
229.92 204.48
1.29 1.39
1.37 1.07
1.58 3.83
6.22 1.28
268.72 234.28
1,172.79 1,180.75
1,172.79 1,180.75
473.86 271.15
473.86 271.15
(362.29) (473.86)
(362.29) (473.86)
111.57 (202.71)
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33

34

35

36

3

~

38

Employee benefits expense
Particulars

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds
Leave Obligation

Gratuity Expenses

Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense

Finance costs

On Bank Loan

Interest on delay in payment of taxes
Processing Fees

Bank Charges

Other Interest Expenses

Interest on Lease Liabilities

Total finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation (Refer note 5)

Amortization (Refer note 6)

Total depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Rent

Rates and taxes

Legal and professional charges
Travelling expenses

Power and fuel

Repairs and maintenance
Distribution Cost

Printing and stationery
Communication expenses
Business promotion expenses
IT Expenses

Subscription Expenses

Net Impairment losses on trade receivables/Financial assets
Auditor's remuneration (Refer note below)
Housekeeping Expenses

Sign on Amount

Office Aircon Charges
Insurance

Miscellaneous expenses

Total other expenses

*Mote : The follewing is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of taxes)

As auditor:
Statutory audit
In nther capacity:
Tax audit

Total

Income Tax

Current tax
Current tax on profits for the period
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods

Total Current Tax

Deferred tax

Deferred tax expense/ (income)

Total tax expense

Earnings per share
Particulars

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company (A)
Weighted Average number of ; issued for Basic EPS (B)
Adjustment for calculati :
Basic EPS in INR

Diluted EPS in INR

For the Year ended
31 March 2022

For the Year ended
31 March 2021

348.09 212.55
9.56 6.05
5.29 4.73
3.64 1.94

12.62 6.61

379.20 231.88

2907 -
0.05 0.02

1.00 -
0.31 0.84
0.04 0.06
22.33 21.66
52.90 22.58
82.16 71.86
4.97 1.60
87.13 73.46
257 6.01
0.84 1.98
72.74 51.72
27.00 11.39
5.70 5.29
3.91 2.90
42.95 33.03
319 2.32
1.62 1.62
44,24 15.25
8.96 4.36
2.34 1.25
5.60 1.23
0.82 0.91
1:51 0.54
16.33 6.00
0.61 0.45
.43 1.52
0.22 10.75
245.46 158.52
0.71 0.91

0.11

0.82 0.91

For the Year ended
31 March 2022

For the Year ended
31 March 2021

RE(,number of share) (C)

(408.47) (181.52)
15,59,104 1,00,200
{261.99) (1,811.60)
(261.99) (1,811.60)
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39 Employee benefits

4

. Defined contribution plans

The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under:

. Provident Fund
. Employee state insurance fund
. Labour welfare fund

The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan -

Particulars

Contribution to Provident Fund
Employers Contribution to Employee state insurance
Employers Contribution to Labour welfare fund

. Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
9.08 5.78
0.45 0.26
0.03 0.02

The Company has a funded Gratuity Scheme for its employees and gratuity liability has been provided based on the actuarialvaluation done at the
year end. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost were measured using the
Projected Unit Credit Method.

The actuarial valuation of the defined benefit obligation was carried out at the balance sheet date. The present value of the defined benefit

obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the details of the employee benefit obligation as at balance
sheet date:

SrNo

]

Defined benefit plans

Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss during the year:
Current service cost

Net interest cost / (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset)
Total expenses

Included in other comprehensive income

Amount recongnized in OCI, Begaining of year

Actuarial (gains) / losses due to demographic assumption changes in defined benefit
obligations

Actuarial (gains) / losses due to financial assumption changes in defined benefit
obligations

Actuarial (gains)/ losses due to experience on defined benefit obligations

Total Remeasurement recognized in OCI

Total Recognized in OCI, End of period

Met liability recognised as at balance sheet date:
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Deficit

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gratuity Gratuity
(Unfunded) {Unfunded)

3.30 1.79
0.34 0.15
3.64 1.94
(0.02) (0.34)
(0.20) (0.03)
0.32 0.35
0.12 0.32
0.11 (0.02)
(7.48) (3.72)
(7.48) (3.72)
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IV Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 3.72 1.46
Current service cost 3.30 1.79
Interest cost 0.34 0.15
Actuarial loss 0.12 032
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 7.48 3.72

V  Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

a  Expected cash flows over the next years (valued on undiscounted basis):

1st Following Year 0.02 0.01
2nd Following Year 0.78 0.01
3rd Following Year 0.89 0.48
4th Following Year 1.06 0.59
5th Following Year 1.22 0.67
Sum of Years 6 To 10 4.49 231
Sum of Years 11 and above 3.46 1.51

VI Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:
1 Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the

year
(i) +1% increase in discount rate (0.44) (0.22)
(i) -1% decrease in discount rate 0.48 0.24
(iit) +1% increase in rate of compensation levels 0.37 0.19
(iv) -1% decrease in rate of compensation levels (0.34) (0.17)

2 Sensitivity analysis method
The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using
the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected
benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

VIl Actuarial assumptions: As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
1 Discount rate 6.70% 6.28%

2 Expected Rate of increase in compensation levels 8.00% 6.00%

3 Withdrawal Rate 20.00% 20.00%

4 Mortality Rate During Employment

IALM (2012-14) Ultimate [ALM (2012-14) Ultimate
6 Retirement Age 58 years 58 years

IIl Leave Encashment
The amount recognized as an expense in respect of compensated absences is 5.29 million (March 21: INR 47.33 million)
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a1

a2

43

44

Contingent liabilities & commitments

particul As at As at
L 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Estimated Amount of contracts remaining to be

executed on capital account = 3.00

Contingencies: Outstanding credit facilities against corporate guarantees given in respect of 2,563 1,384

credit facilities by bankers of subsidiary companies (sanction limit of INR 3790.95 million March
22, INR 1950 Million March 21) (Refer Note 45)

Contingent commitments

There is no contingent commitments.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) of the Company. The
wholetime director of the Company acts as the (CODM). The Company operates only in one business segment i.e. trading of pharmaceutical and surgical products and
hence, the Company has only one separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company'’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital,convertible preference shares and all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to safeguard the Company’s ability to remain as a going concern
and maximise the shareholder value.The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions, annual operating
plans and long term and other strategic investment plans. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The current capital structure of the Company is equity based with no financing through borrowings.
The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirement. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

Particulars el Aaa
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Borrowings

Long term and Short term horrowings 300.00

Less: cash and cash equivalents (302.02)

Adjusted net debt (2.02) -
Total Equity 12.47 -
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (0.16) -

Events after reporting date
There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.
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45 Fair value measurements
A. Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not
include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

. Carrying Amount Fair Value
Particulars
FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2022
Non-current financial assets
Investments in subsidiaries - * 394.30 394.30 - - 394.30 394.30
Other financial assets - - 28.17 28.17 E - 28.17 28.17
422.47 422.47 - - 422.47 422.47
Current financial assets
Investment - - - -
Trade receivables - - 522.30 522.30 E & 522.30 522.30
Cash and cash equivalents - - 302.02 302.02 - - 302.02 302.02
Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalent - - 580.41 580.41 - - 580.41 580.41
Loans 3,196.45 3,196.45 - - 3,196.45 3,196.45
Other financial assets - - 312.11 312.11 - - 312.11 312.11
Total - - 4,913.29 4,913.29 - g 4,913.29 4,913.29
Non-current financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities - - 221.72 221.72 = - 221.72 221.72
Current financial liabilities
Borrowings 300.00 300.00 = - 300.00 300.00
Lease Liabilities - - 33.24 33.24 - E 33.24 33.24
Trade payables - - 347.50 347.50 = " 347.50 347.50
Other financial liabilities - - 71.06 71.06 - - 71.06 71.06
Total - - 973.52 973.52 - - 973.52 973.52
Particulars . .
Carrying Amount Fair Value
Financial assets and liabilities as at 31
@12_911_ - FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Non-current financial assets
Investments in subsidiaries 387.05 387.05 387.05 387.05
Other financial assets 30.06 30.06 30.06 30.06
- - 417.11 417.11 - . 41711 417.11
Current financial assets
Investment
Trade receivables - - 308.55 308.55 - - 308.55 308.55
Cash and cash equivalents - - 162,19 162.19 162.19 162.19
Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalent - . 504.41 504.41 - - 504.41 504.41
Loans - - 2,429.67 2,429.67 - 2,429.67 2,429.67
Other financial assets - - 239.94 239.94 - - 239.94 239.94
Total - - 4,061.87 4,061.87 - - 4,061.87 4,061.87
Non-current financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities 205.59 205.59 - - 205.59 205.59
Current financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities 26.25 26.25 26.25 26.25
Trade payables - - 1.72 1.72 - - 1.72 1.72
Other financial liabilities - - 129.40 129.40 - - 129.40 129.40
Total - - 56.63 56.63 - - 56.63 56.63
- - 419.59 214.00 - - 214.00 214.00

B. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, deposits, other receivables, cash and cash equivalent including other current bank balances and other
liabilities including deposits, creditors for capital expenditure, etc. are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to current and short term nature of such
balances.

C. Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value of financial instruments as referred to above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3 measurements)

Level 1: Level 1 fyer

The fair value gf N

" ~JdJ
\)/ T \\
ruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maxlmrse/ﬁ&q se of observabie:|
ument is includgt
«f\

s which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2: The fhi\ e nnqai_

)
market data \i }\(as little s{l‘é,s e on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the‘\

in level 2. //\R.“
Level 3: If one @ }(’ecDFiﬂ
included in level 3. N
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46 Financial Risk Management
The company has in place comprehensive risk management policy in order to identify measure, monitor and mitigate various risks pertaining to its
business. Along with the risk management policy, an adequate internal control system, commensurate to the size and complexity of its business, is
maintained to align with the philosophy of the company. Together they help in achieving the business goals and objectives consistent with the
company's strategies to prevent inconsistencies and gaps between its policies and practices. The Board of Directors/committtees reviews the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management policy and internal control system. The company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to
plan and execute its business strategies.
The company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
 Credit risk
e Liquidity risk and
* Market risk

(A) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the company’s trade and other receivables. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk
exposure.

i) Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been managed
by the company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the
company grants credit terms in the normal course of busines.

Summary of the compay’s exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

Particulars aral Ak
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Unsecured

-Considered good 522.30 308.55
-Having significant increase in Credit Risk 7.07 1.47
Gross Trade Receivables 529.36 310.02
Less: Impairment Loss (7.07) (1.47)
Net Trade Receivables 522.30 308.55

On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss. The company computes the
expected credit loss allowance as per simplified approach for trade receivables based on available external and internal credit risk factors such as the
ageing of its dues, market information about the customer and the company’s historical experience for customers. The company has used a practical
expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account
historical credit loss experience and is based on the ageing of the receivable days and the rates as given in the provision matrix.

ii) Loans and financial assets measured at amortized cost
Loans and advaces given comprises of inter company loans hence the risk of default from these companies are remote.The Company monitors each
loans and advances given and makes any specific provision wherever required.

iii. Cash and bank balances

The company held cash and cash equivalent and other bank balance of INR 302.02 million as at 31 march 2022 (31 March 2021: INR 16.22 million). The
same are held with bank and financial institution counterparties with good credit rating. Also, company invests its short term surplus funds in bank
fixed deposit which carry no market risks for short duration, therefore does not expose the company to credit risk.

iv. Others
Apart from trade receivables loans and cash and bank balances , the company has no other financial assets which carries any significant credit risk.
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{B) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk thal the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabitities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity te meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the company's reputation. Management monitors rolfing forecasts of the company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of

expected cash flows.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and

include contractual interest payments.

Contractual maturities of financial liahilities Aear oless 15 years More than Total
31 March 2022 5 years
Lease Liabilities 59.74 218.34 61.42 339.50
Trade Payables 347.50 - - 347.50
Borrowings 300.00 . 300.00
Other financial liabilities 71.06 . 71.06
Total 778.30 218.34 61.42 1,058.06
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 1 year or less 1-5 years More than Total
31 March 2021 3 years
Lease Liabilities 47.22 190.38 74.99 312.58
Trade Payables 26.25 26.25
Borrowings - -
Other financial liabilities 56.63 - - 56.63
Total 130.09 190.38 74.99 395.46
{C) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchénge rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the company's
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk eXposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.The company’s exposure to, and management of, these risks is explained below.

{i) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The company caters

mainly to the Indian Market , Most of the transactions are denominated in the company's functional currency i.e. Rupees. Hence the company is not
materially exposed to Foreign Currency Risk.

(ii} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest

rates.There are no borrowings in the Company and hence not exposed to interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The exposure of the Company’s borrawing to Interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars Asat o
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Variable rate borrowings 300.00 -
Fixed rate borrowings 5 R
Sensitivity:
A change of 100 basis paints in interest rates would have following impact on profit befare tax and equity -
) As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points 2.22
{2.22)

Interest rates - decrease by 100 basis points
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47 Related Party Disclosures

A. Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

Description of relationship

Name of the related party

Fellow suhsidiary companies

Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Lmited
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited
RS M Pharma Private Limited

Getwell Medicare Solutions Private Limited
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited

Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Vasavi Medicare Scluticns Private Limited
SVMED Solutions Private Limited

Chethana Pharma Private Limited

Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited

Rada Medisolutions Private Limited

Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Private Limited
Barros Enterprises Private Limited

Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited
CPD Pharma Private Limited

Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited
Curever Pharma Private Limited

Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
City Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Swami Medisolutions Private Limited

New Siva Agencies Private Limited

New RRPD Private Limited

Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited
Sri Parshva Pharma Distributors Private Limited

Key Management Personnel and
their relative:

Prabhat Agrawal (Managing Director)
Prem Sethi (Director)

Sunny Sharma (Director)

Jayant Prakash (CS)

Arun Sadhanandham (Director)

Vipul Desai (Director)

B. Details of related party transactions:

X For the Year ended  For the Year ended
Nature of Transaction Name of the related party 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 8.26 3.00
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 3.26 -
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 8.77 29.04
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited 2.04 0.02
Purchase of stock in trade Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited 1.79 -
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 0.78 -
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited 9.75 -
Curever Pharma Private Limited 0.93 -
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited 62.15 21.42
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 2.19 4,13
RS M Pharma Private Limited 0.08 2.44
Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited 3.05 21.52
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 93.56 151.19
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited 2.20 1.45
Barros Enterprises Pvt Ltd 2.24 239
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited 0.18 0.14
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited 0.50 0.51
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 6.30 2.90
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited 7.22 6.69
T Millenn'\um Mer%isolutions Private Limited 7.13 5.12
Rada Medisolutions Private Limited 5.56 5.77
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited 0.11 (0.24)
SVMED Solutions Private Limited 5.54 9.49
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited 0.29 1.83
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited - N 1.08 2.70
Curever Pharma Private Limited / AN\ 6.16
Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited ; 0.30
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 0.53 -
City Pharma Distributors Private Limited 0.20 -
New Siva Agencies Private Limited 0.43 0.04
Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Pvt Ltd 1.63 237
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Nature of Transaction

Name of the related party

For the Year ended
31 March 2022

For the Year ended
31 March 2021

Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 180.00 55.00
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 55.50 -
R § M Pharma Private Limited 34.00 20.00
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited 16.00 38.50
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited 5.00 -
Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited 20.00 -
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited 10.00 28,00
Barros Enterprises Private Limited - 55.00
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 3.00 3.00
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 36.10 -
City Pharma Distributors Private Limited 34.70
New RRPD Private Limited 59.30 -
New Siva Agencies Private Limited 65.90 -
Sri Parshva Pharma Distributors Private Limited 547.09 -
iraRsGivas Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 122.03 -
Swami Medisolutions Private Limited 62.30 -
Western Healthcare Solutions Pvt Ltd 187.50 -
Chethana Pharma Private Limited 10.00 -
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited 10.00 3.98
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited 5.00 8.00
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited 30.00 65.00
Rada Medisolutions Private Limited 6.00 28.90
Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Pvt Ltd 13.10 53,75
SVMED Solutions Private Limited 53.70 49,00
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited 14.50 23.00
Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited 10.64 6.76
Curever Pharma Private Limited 287.40 8.00
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited 10.40 24.95
Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Limited 0.50 10.50
CPD Pharma Private Limited 9.49 10.95
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 203.95 14.42
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited - -
Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited 20.00 55.15
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited 5.00 26.35
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 3.00 -
Chethana Pharma Private Limited 10.00 163.83
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited 30.00 -
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited 31.25 99.84
Rada Medisolutions Private Limited 1.00 -
. R S M Pharma Private Limited 86.06 4.36
Loans Repaid
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited - 69.27
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited 33.73 19.22
Barros Enterprises Private Limited 29.47
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited - 82.08
Curever Pharma Private Limited 191.20 -
Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Private Limited 32.49 -
Sri parshva Pharma Distributors Private limited 303.41 -
SVMED Solutions Private Limited 84.69 -
Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 50.00 -
Barros Enterprises Private Limited 45.00 -
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! . For the Year ended  For the Year ended
Nature of Transaction Name of the related party 31 March 2022 8% Mareh 2054
Novacare Healthcare Solutlons Private Untitad 21.68 17.85
G.5.Phormaceutical Distributors Private Limited 1.94 5.61
RE M Pharma Crivate Limited 13.89 12,37
Galoxystar Pherma Distributors Private Limited 6.99 11.63
Sundaral Pharma Distributors Private Limited 6.42 7.65
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 6.48 6.62
Getwell Modicare Solution Private Limited 7.50 10,12
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited * . 25.64 24.01
Barros Enterprises Pyt Ltd 801 14,80
Chethane Hesltheare Solutions Private Linvited 5.02 4.87
Chethana Phoarma Private Limited 7.86 16.37
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited 7.97 8.65
Jaggi Enterprises Private tmited 12.38 15.96
MiliznniGsm Medisolutions Private Limited 18.22 15.25
Rada Medisolutions Private Umited 7.51 6.81
nterest icome Sesha Bulajee Medisolutions Pt Lid 9.43 8.45
SYMED Solutlons Private Limited &.58 9.59
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited 8.00 10,02
Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited 090 0.02
Curever Phanma Private Limited 11.31 0.02
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited 2.29 0.71
Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Limited .85 0.41
CPD Pharnw Private Linsited 1.56 .02
Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 12.45 .
Atrefa Healtheare Soiutiens Private Limited 1.92 -
Clty Pharma Bistrivutors Private Umited .22 E
Swami Medisolutions Private Limited 116 -
New Slva Agencies Private Limited 1.53
New REPD Private Limited 1.15
S Rama Pharmaceutical Distribulors Private Limited 0.47 .
Sri Pershva Phanne Distributors Private Limited 4.90 -
Prabhat Agrawal 31.20 28.78
Remuneration Paid Prem Sethi 15.78 12.88
Jayant Prakash 1.58 -
[ Commiission Expense Novacare Mealthcore Solutions Private Limited 5,85 =
| Commission income Cuwever Pharma Private Limited 2,64 -]
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 500.00 500.00
Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited 150.00 150.00
Averwies Pharma Distributors Private Limited 350.00 300.00
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 50.00 50.00
Chirag Medicare Sclutions Private Limited 150.00 150,00
8BS M Pharma Private Umited 25(.00 150,00
G.5.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited £Q.00 £0.00
Chihnbra Healtheare Solutions Private Limiled 50.00 50.00
10.00 70.00

Sundarlai Pharma Distributors Private Limited

Galaxystar #harma Distributors Erivate Limited 150.00 160.00

Corporate Guarantees Given  SYMED Solutlons Private Umited 150,00 -
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited 15000 %
Barros Enterprises Private Limited 67.00 .
Sesha Balbjer Medisolutions eyt Ltd 150,00 “
Jaggi Eeterprises Private Limited 120.00 100.00
Waestern Heslthcare Solutions Private Limited £0.00 .
Chethana Pharma Private Lmited 150.00 150,00
St Rame Pharmaceutical Distributers Private Limited 226.62 i
Sri Parshva Pharma Distributors private fimited 547,33 .
Millennivm Medisolutions Private Limited 150.00 100.00
Curever Pharma Private Limited 200.00
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C. Details of balances outstanding for related party transactions:

Nature of Transaction Name of the related party As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 215.94 239.90
} G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 125.69 70.19
| RS M Pharma Private Limited 112.06 164,12
Galaxystar Pharma Distributars Private Limited 72.44 87.69
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited 79.62 79.62
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 80.94 80.94
Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited 106.13 106.13
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited 321.10 311.10
Barros Enterprises Pvt Ltd 81.53 126.53
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 62.70 62.70
Chethana Pharma Private Limited 99.15 99.15
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited 90.58 110.58
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited 158.07 153.07
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited 199.98 169.98
Rada Medisolutions Private Limited 95.90 90.90
Loans Given Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Pvt Ltd 124.36 143.75
SVMED Solutions Private Limited 107.59 138.58
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited 112.04 131.28
Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited 17.40 6.76
Curever Pharma Private Limited 104,20 8.00
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited 35.35 24,95
Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Limited 11.00 10.50
CPD Pharma Private Limited 20.44 10.95
Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 137.50 -
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 36.10 -
City Pharma Distributors Private Limited 34.70
Swami Medisolutions Private Limited 62.30
New Siva Agencies Private Limited 65.90 -
New RRPD Private Limited 59.30
Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 122.03 e
Sri parshva Pharma Distributors private limited 243.69 -
As at As at

Nature of Transaction Name of the related party

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited
RS M Pharma Private Limited
Galaxystar Pharma Distributars Private Limited
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Barros Enterprises Pvt Ltd
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Chethana Pharma Private Limited
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited
Rada Medisolutions Private Limited
Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Pvt Ltd
Interest receivable SVMED Solutions Private Limited
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited
Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
City Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
New Siva Agencies Private Limited
New RRPD Private Limited
Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited
Sri parshva Pharma Distributors private limited
Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited
Curever Pharma Private Limited
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited
Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Limited
CPD Pharma Private Limited

15:53
17.82
12.50
6.29
12.86
5.83
6.75
69.91
7.21
452
7.16
7.18
25.91
13.70
15.05
8.85
7.72

8.10
11.20
1.78
1.09
1.04
1.38
1.04
0.43

4.41
0.83
10.20
272
1.14
1.42

16.05
10.67
11.44
10.75
7.08
6.13
9.36
49.33
92.89
8.68
15.14
8.00
14.77
14.11
8.29
10.01
12.81

9.27

0.02
0.02
0.66
0.38
0.02
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Nature of Transaction

Name of the related party

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 152.70 97.37
R S M Pharma Private Limited 2.81 2.21
Barros Enterprises Pvt Ltd 0.29 0.21
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 4,21 2.33
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited 0.78 (0.15)
Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited 41.47 4.67
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 11.60 2.67
laggi Enterprises Private Limited 10.72 4.24
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited 8.74 0.57
Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Pvt Ltd 1.97 0.77
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited 0.15 (0.04)
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited 4.67 2.08
Trade Receivables Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited 4,40 0.13
CPD Pharma Private Limited 0.63 -
Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited 0.14 E
Curever Pharma Private Limited 6.41 -
Chethana Pharma Private Limited « 0.03
Rada Medisolutions Private Limited 10.02 5.72
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited 0.45 0.38
SVMED Solutions Private Limited 12.44 6.43
Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 0.26 -
New Siva Agencies Private Limited 0.17 -
City Pharma Distributors Private Limited 0.01 -
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 0.60
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited 1.26 0.26
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 110.00 110.00
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 36.00 36.00
RS M Pharma Private Limited 47.70 47.70
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited 48.00 48.00
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited 23.00 23.00
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 35.00 35.00
Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited 68.00 68.00
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Barros Enterprises Pvt Ltd 0.10 0.10
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 1.00 1.00
Chethana Pharma Private Limited 3.00 3.00
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited 1.00 1.00
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Rada Medisolutions Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Pvt Ltd 0.10 0.10
SVMED Solutions Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Investments ) .
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited 0.10 0.10
CPD Pharma Private Limited 10.10 10.10
Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Curever Pharma Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Rimedio Pharma Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Quromed Life Sciences Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 0.10
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 0.10 -
City Pharma Distributors Private Limited 0.10 -
Swami Medisolutions Private Limited 0.10
New Siva Agencies Private Limited 0.10
New RRPD Private Limited 0.10
Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 0.10
Sri parshva Pharma Distributors private limited 0.10 -
Zennx Software Solutions Private Limited 0.10 E
| Reimbursement of expenses  Curever Pharma Private Limited 3.03 _|




Entero Healtheare Solutions Private Limited
Notes formiing part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Amount in Millions. unless olherwise stated)

. As at As at
Niture of Transaction Name of the related party 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited 132 0.77
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited 30.52 241
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 2.04
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited 1.74
Trade payables Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited {0.04)
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 12.82 11.94
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited {0.00)
Curever Pharma Private Limited 104
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 4.31 6.08
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 433.44 351.61
Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited 76.74 84.57
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited 250.28 249.64
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 17.23 18.12
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited 84.29 96.83
R § M Pharma Private Limited 189.16 106.35
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 72.65 73.25
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 39.48 39.29
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited 21.16 27.74
Corporate Guarantees Given  ©2/2xystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited 84.01 83.85
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited 85,55 68.07
Chethana Pharma Private Limited 59.42 99.86
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited 128.55 84.46
Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 226.62
Sri parshva Pharma Distributors private limited 547.33
Barros Enterprises Private Limited 34.61
Sesha Balajee Medisalutions Private Limited 48.03
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited 61.11
SVMED Solutions Private Limited 80.26
Waestern Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 22.89
D. Key management personnel compensation:
For the Yearended  For the Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Director Remuneration:
48.56 411.66

Salaries and Allowances

Key managerial personnel who are under the employment of the Company are entitled to post employment benefits recognised as per ind AS 19 -
‘Employee Benefits’ in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is

not included above. Gratuity has been computed for the Company as a whole and hence excluded.

E. The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that
year-end are unsecured and settlement accurs in cash. This assessment is undertaki

the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the
en each financial year through examining the financial position of




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

48 Disclosure related to Leases
Company as Lessee

(A) Change in Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting year

Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions

Depreciation charge for the year
Balance at the end of the year

(B) Change in Carrying value of lease liabilities at the end of the reporting year
Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions

Payment during the year

Gain on modification of lease liability
Finance cost

Balance at the end of the year

(C) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

Particulars

Less than one year

One to five years

More than five years

Total undiscounted lease liabilities at reporting year

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position at the year ended

(D) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss
Particulars
Interest on lease liabilities
Expenses relating to short-term leases

Amotisation of Right to Use Assets

(E

Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows
Particulars

Total Cash outflow for leases

49  Statement of unhedged foreign currency exposure:

Particulars

Advance to vendors

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
214.298 180.59
51.74 67.97
(39.74) (34.26)
226.30 214.30
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
231.84 187.24
49.95 64.23
(49.15) (41.29)
0.67 “
21.65 21.66
254.97 231.84
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
59.74 47.22
218.34 190.38
61.42 74.99
339.50 312.58
254.97 231.84

For the Year ended

For the Year

ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
22.33 21.66
2.57 6.01
39.74 34.26

For the Year ended

For the Year

ended
31 March 2022
Hrehi2d 31 March 2021
49.15 41.29
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amount ount in INR AmountinUSD  Amount in INR
in USD
0.05 8.03 012 2.03




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Amount in INR unless otherwise stated)

50 Ratio Analysis

% change from
Particulars Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 31 March2021 to 31
March 2022
a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 7.05 17.59 -59.96%
Explanation The company has borrowed fund during the year, resulting in decrease of current ratio.
| t 0.05 NA| NA]
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio shart te.rm Ll Total Equity
borrowings
) . . Short term and long term NA| NA
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio [Earning before Interest and Tax )
borrowings (1.26)
(d) Return on Equity Ratio Net Profit After Tax Total Equity (0.07) (0.04) -98.30%
Explanation Decreased ratio due to increase in employee benefits & finance cost for business growth.
(e) Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 3.07 2.63 17.01%
ivabl 3.30 4.34 -23.85%
(f)tTrade Hepshvanies Inmpyes Net credit sales Average Trade receivables ?
ratio
17 s
(rgi.';rade piyal e TlHbuer Credit purchases Average Trade payable Q 0.23 -24.62%
1
Working Capital (Current Assets- 0.29 0.25
(h) Net capital turnover ratio Sales e g p : ( 12.70%
Current Liabilities)
{i) Net profit ratio Net profit after tax Net Sales (0.30) (0.17) -71.64%
Explanation Decreased ratio due to increase in employee benefits & finance cost for business growth.
- . ) ikal ]
(j) Return on Capital employed  |Earning before Interest and Tax |Capital Employed 0.07) (0.04) -84.08%
Explanation Decreased ratio due to increase in employee benefits & finance cost for business growth.
(k) Return on investment Net profit after tax Average Total Assets (0.07) (0.04) -89.37%
Explanation Decreased ratio due to increase in employee benefits & finance cost over a period for business growth.

51 Other Statutory Information:

A) (i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(i) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory year.

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company have not advanced or extended loan or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii} The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The
Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders
which are underactive consideration by the Ministry. The Group will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact
in its financial statements in the year in which, the Code becomes effective and therelated rules to determine the financial impact are published.

(viii) The Company does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
(previous year) in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or by any government authorities.

X) Disclosure of Loans or Advances granted to related parties( as defined under Companies Act, 2013):-
a) Repayable on demand (Unsecued)

As at
31 March 2022

As at

% of total |
Siahtatalinmn 31 March 2021

% of total loans

Related Parties

3,195.75 99.98%

2,428.98

99.97%




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Amount in INR unless otherwise stated)

52 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classification.

As per our report of even date
For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.:105047,

Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204 ©
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Partner Director Company Secretary
Membershi DIN: 07077034 M.N.:FCS-6742
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 October 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Entero Healthcare
Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries
(Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31 » 2022, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, of consolidated loss, consolidated
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountant of India (“ICAI”), and the relevant provisions of the Act and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated F inancial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director’s report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Goa | Gurugram | Hyderabad | Kochi | Kolkata | Mumbai | Pune www.mska.in
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the

Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other Matters

a. We did not audit the financial statements of 20 subsidiaries, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 3,120.45 Million as at March 31, 2022, total revenues of Rs. 4,899.16
Million and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 75 Million for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel: +91 22 6831 1600
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the

Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, incorporated
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, incorporated in India are disqualified
as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the

Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial
position of the Group.

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India.

Head Office: 602, Flook 6, Raheja Titanium, Western Express Highway, Geetanjali Railway Colony, Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel: +91 22 6831 1 6Q0
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iv.

1. The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries,
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of
such subsidiaries, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or
any of such subsidiaries, to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that such parties shall, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

2. The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries,
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of
such subsidiaries, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report,
that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

3. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the
auditors of the subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, and according to the
information and explanations provided to us by the Management of the
Holding Company in this regard nothing has come to our or other auditors’
notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under
(1) and (2) above, contain any material mis-statement

V. The Holding Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Head Office: 602, Floor 6, Raheja Titanium, Western Express Highway, Geetanjali Railway Colony, Ram Nagar, Goregaor (E), Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel: +91 22 6831 16q0
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In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder are not applicable to the Group as itisa
private Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO reports
issued by us for the Company and on consideration of CARO reports by statutory auditors
of subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company to which
reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no Qualifications/adverse

remarks.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Ne. 105047W

Vaijayarl;imala Belsare

Partner

Membership No. 049902
UDIN: 22049902BFYMQU8192

Place: Mumbai
Date: December 22, 2022

Head Office: 602, Floor 6, Raheja Titanium, Western Express Highway, Gee
Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Goa | Gurugram | Hydera

bad | Kochi | Kolkata | Mumbai | Pune

tanjali Railway Colony, Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel: +9122 6831 1600



MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ENTERO HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Head Office: 602, Floor 6, Raheja Titanium, Western Express Highway,
Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Goa | Gurugram | Hydera

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of

such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

bad | Kochi | Kolkata | Mumbai | Pune
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
and where applicable, related safeguards.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Vaijayantimala Belsare
Partner

Membership No. 049902
UDIN: 22049902BFYMQU8192

Place: Mumbai
Date: December 22, 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ENTERO HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Entero Healthcare Solutions Private
Limited on the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control with reference to
consolidated financial statements criteria established by the respective companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the

ICAI”).
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
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require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to
consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the

consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it
relates to 20 subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India,

corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Né. 105047W

Membership No. 049902
UDIN: 22049902BFYMQU8192

Place: Mumbai
Date: December 22, 2022

Head Office: 602, Floor 6, Raheja Titanium, Western Express Highway, Geetanjali Railway Colony, Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E),

Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Goa | Gurugram | Hyderabad | Kochi | Kolkata | Mu

mbai | Pune

Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel: +91

is based on the

22 6831 1600



Entero Heaithcare Solutions Frivate Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(X in Million, unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Particulars Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,073.24 967.28
Capital work-in-progress 9 5.86 -
Geadwill 6 1,502.44 894.90
Other intangible assets 7 44.00 23.55
Intangible asset under development 8 0.54 22.40
Firancial assets
QOther Financial Assets 10 67.46 63.93
Deferred tax asset (net) 11 6.77 3.29
Mon Current tax assets (net) 12 48.62 33.29
Other non-current assets 13 2.07 -
Total non-current assets 2,751.00 2,008.63
Current assets
Inventories 14 3,101.64 2,439.26
Financial assets
Trade receivables 15 3,745.99 2,421.52
Cash and cash equivalents 16 465.08 323.14
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 17 588.90 505.10
Loans 18 10.22 7.52
QOther financial assets 19 15.37 6.27
Other current assets 20 581.63 626.43
Total current assets 8,508.83 6,329.24
Total assets 11,259.83 8,337.87
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 21 38.50 1.00
Instruments entirely equity in nature 22 6,189.90 5,171.12
Other equity 23 (617.98) (318.46)
Equity attributable to owners of the company 5,610.42 4,853.66
Non-Controlling Interests 24 21.75 16.94
Total equity 5,632.17 4,870.G0
Liabilities
Naon-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 27 371.26 -
Lease Liabilities 25 576.86 532.32
Provisions 26 54.65 27.45
Deferred tax Liability (net) 11 17.43 16.23
Total non-current liabilities 1,020.20 576.00
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 27 2,479.02 1,417.03
Lease Liabilities 25 119.17 79.90
Trade payables 28
i)total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 23.42 10.70
ii)total 'outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprise and small enterprise 1,374.37 956.70
Other financial liabilities 29 410.55 108.16
Other current liabilities 30 119.33 116.53
Provisions 26 69.26 194.85
Current tax liabilities (net} 12 12.34 7.40
Total current liabilities 4,607.46 2,891.27
Total liabilities 5,627.66 3,467.27
Total equity and liabilities 11,259.83 8,337.87
1-57

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For M 5 K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited »°
CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204 g
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Prem Sethi Jayant¥Prakash
ctor Director Company Secretary
DIN: 07077034 M.N.:FCS-6742

Prabhat
Managing
DIN: 07466382
Place: Mumbai
Date: 21 December 2022

Partner

Membership [lo: 049902
Place: Mumb

Date: 22 December 2022




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Consolidated Statemaent of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Xin million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Income

Revenue from operations

Other income

Total income

Expenses

Purchase of Stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of Stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Loss befare tax

Tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax

Total income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plan
Income tax effect

Total

Items that will be reclassified to profit.or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit/Loss attributable to
Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling Interest

Total comprehensive income attributable to
QOwners of the Company
Non-Controlling Interest

Earnings per share
Basic (INR)
Diluted {INR)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.:105047

Vaijaya Belsare
Partner
Membershify No: 049902

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 December 2022

Notes

31
32

33
34
35
36
37
38

39
39

40

1-57

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

25,197.64 17,731.04
67.84 105.63
25,265.48 17,836.67
23,778.19 16,865.68
(653.82) (484.29)
1,138.62 749.43
289.78 200.38
197.54 162.76
713.28 451.09
25,463.59 17,945.05
{198.11) {108.38)
98.64 46.84
(2.36) (1.68)
96.28 45.16
(294.38) (153.54)
(0.26) (2.05)
(0.07) 0.20
{0.33) (1.85)
{0.33) (1.85)
(294.71) (155.39)
(299.19) (155.37)
4.81 1.83
(294.38) {153.54)
(299.52) (157.17)
481 1.79
(294.71) {155.38)
(191.90) {1,550.60}
{191.90) (1,550.60)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204

Prabhat Agrawal
Managing Diector
DIN: 07466382
Place: Mumbai
Date: 21 December 2022

-

Prém Sethi
Director
DIN: 07077034

Jayant Prakash
Company Secretary
M.N.:FCS-6742



Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Xin Million, unless otherwise stated)

(A} Equity share capital

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.00 1.00
|Changes in Equity Share capital during the year 37.50 -
rBalance at the end of the year 38.50 1.00
(B) Other equity
| ) Reserve and surplus Total equity Attributable to
Particulars I"s‘tru':"ef'ts entirely attributable to Non controlling Total Equity
equity in nature , .
Retained earnings owners interest
Balance as at 31 March 2020 4,387.12 {161.29) 4,225.83 15.16 4,240.99
Changes during the year
Issued during the year 784.00 - 784.00 - 784.00
Profit/{Loss) for the year - (155.37) (155.37) 1.83 {153.54)
Other comprehensive income for the year {1.80) (1.80) (0.05) (1.85)
As at 31 March 2021 5,171.12 (318.46) 4,852.66 16.95 4,869.60
Changes during the year
Issued during the year 1,018.78 1,018.78 1,018.78
Profit/{Loss) for the year - (299.19) (299.19) 4.81 (294.39)
Qther comprehensive income for the year - (0.33) (0.33) - (0.33)
Total 6,189.90 (617.98) 5,571.91 21.76 5,593.67
Balance as at 31 March 2022 6,189.90 (617.98) 5,571.91 21.76 5,593.67 |
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 1-57

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.:105047W

Vaijayan
Partner

Membershlg No: 045902
Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 December 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204

Prabhat Agraw
Managing Director

DIN: 07466382

Place: Mumbai

Date: 21 December 2022

Sethi Jayant Prakash
Director Company Secretary
DIN: 07077034 M.N.:FCS-6742
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Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Xin Million, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow fram operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Finance cost
Provision for expected credit loss
Provisian for retirement benefits & Leave obligation
Interest income
Provision for sales return
Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade receivables
(Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase in loans

Increase in other financial assets
Decrease/{Increase) in other current assets
(Increase)/Decrease in other non current assets
Cash used in operations

Income tax paid (including advance tax & TDS)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (A)

Cash flow from Investing activities

Purchase consideration on acquisition of business / subsidiary
Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Interest received

Investment in Bank deposits

Net cash flow used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of Equity Shares

Proceeds from issuance of convertible preference shares
Proceeds from borrowings

Principal paid on lease liahilities

Interest paid on lease

Interest paid

Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise {Refer note 16)
Balances with banks

On current accounts

Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand
Cheques on hand
Total cash and bank balances at end of the year

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(198.11) {108.38)
197.54 162.76
289.78 200.38
62.50 14,05
22,12 15.01
(34.39) (26.44)
(122.38) 60.86
217.06 318.24
185.18 (89.82)
(300.97) (489.51)
(682.19) (119.19)
2.22 (63.08)
302.39 (76.28)
{2.70) (3.48)
(12.63) (0.04)
50.10 (122.25)
(2.07) 4.40
(243.61) (641.01)
(109.04) (45.83)
(352.65) (686.84)
(1,469.24) {10.99)
(97.89) {95.29)
34.39 26.07
(83.81) (228.48)
{1,616.55) (308.69)

37.50 R
1,018.78 784.00
1,433.25 352.34
(88.61) (42.32)
(61.64) (58.61)
(228.14) (148.28)
2,111.14 887.13
14194 {108.40)
323.14 431.54
465.08 323.14
439.21 305.89
1.49 0.02
24.25 16.97
0.13 0.26
465.08 323.14




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(T in Million, unless otherwise stated)

Reconcilation of the movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance
Cash credit facility 1,408.53 1,056.22
Vehicle Loan - 0.20
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 1.90 211
Total Changes from financing cash flows 1,410.43 1,058.53
Movement
Cash flows-Cash Credit facility 402.12 352,31
Cash flows-Vehicle Loan - {0.20)
Interest paid (290.27) (200.59)
Interest expenses 289.78 200.38
Closing Balance
Cash credit facility 1,810.65 1,408.53
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 1.41 1.90
1,812.06 1,410.43

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7, Statement of Cash Flows as
specified in the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 2015 (as amended).

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from
the date of acquisition).

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 1-57
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For M S K A & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Firm Registration No.:105047W CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204
N
Qfﬁ/ Ak
. T y onb ‘Wk
Vaijayantimala Belsare Prabhat Agrawa Prem Sethi Jayant Prakash
Partner 3 Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No: 049902 R DIN: 07466382 DIN: 07077034 M.N.:FCS-6742
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 December 2022 Date: 21 December 2022
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Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Xin Million, unless otherwise stated)

1. General Information
The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Entero Healthcare Solutions
Private Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31
March 2022. The Company was incorporated on 10 January 2018 under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 applicable in India. Its registered and principal office of business is located at Faridabad,
Haryana. The Group is the authorized distributor for most of the top Pharmaceutical companies in India.
It also has strategic supply relationship with some of the leading corporate hospital chains of the country.

2. Significant accounting policies

Significant accounting policies adopted by the group are as under:
2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

A. Statement of Compliance with IND AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,

2016.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires
a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

These financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors on 21 December 2022.
B. Principles of Consolidation and other Equity Accounting

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases. The acquisition method of accounting is used for business combination by the group. The
Group assesses whether or not it cantrols an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances. If a member in the Group uses accounting policies other than
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that member's financial statements in prepanng
the consolidated financial statements to ensure. conformlty with the Group's accounting pOIlClES

5

\\\“: .:""




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Xin Million, unless otherwise stated)

ii)Consolidation procedure : (a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiary. For this purpose, income and expenses of the

subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements at the acquisition date. (b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment
in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary. (c) Eliminate in full intragroup
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities

of the group.

(iii) Non-controlling interests (NCI) NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
identifiable assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

The subsidiaries considered in the consolidated financial statement are :

% ownership

Country  of with effect

Name of Group . as at 31

Incorporation from
March 2022

G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited India 100% 09-08-2018
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited India 100% 09-08-2018
RS M Pharma Private Limited India 100% 14-08-2018
Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited India 85% 26-12-2018
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited India 100% 29-12-2018
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited India 100% 19-01-2019
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited India 100% 21-02-2019
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited India 100% 15-04-2019
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited India 100% 15-05-2019
laggi Enterprises Private Limited India 100% 20-05-2019
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited India 100% 29-05-2019
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited India 100% 31-05-2019
SVMED Solutions Private Limited India 100% 12-06-2019
Chethana Pharma Private Limited India 100% 06-08-2019
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited India 100% 07-08-2019
Rada Medisolutions Private Limited India 100% 21-08-2019
Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Private Ltd India 100% 13-01-2020
Barros Enterprises Private Limited India 100% 02-03-2020
Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Limited India 100% 08-04-2020
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited India 100% 06-08-2020
CPD Pharma Private Limited India 100% 14-09-2020
Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited India 100% 01-01-2021
Curever Pharma Private Limited India 100% 19-01-2021
Rimedio Pharma Privati‘g@‘itﬂed India 100% 26-03-2020
India 100% 26-03-2020

Quromed Life Scierﬁﬁi&éﬁiﬁ@ited
%r ,’. ‘\‘I-
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Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Xin

Million, unless otherwise stated)

Sri Parshva Pharma Distributors Private Limited India 100% 01-02-2022
Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited India 100% 01-03-2022
Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited India 100% 01-04-2021
City Pharma Distributor Private Limited India 100% 14-04-2021
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited India 100% 14-04-2021
Zennx Software Solutions Private Limited India 100% 09-11-2021
New Siva Agencies Private Limited India 100% 02-12-2021
New RRPD Private Limited India 100% 03-12-2021
Swami Medisolutions Private Limited India 100% 21-12-2021

C. Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfied any of the following criteria:

it is expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the group's normal operating

cycle;
it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for

at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified

as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

it expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;
it is held primarily for the purpose of heing traded;

it is due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date; orthe Group does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
eguity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are

classified as non-current.




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(X in Million, unless otherwise stated)

D. Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for
the following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant ind AS:-
e Certain Financial assets are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial
instruments)
o Employee’s Defined Benefit Pian as per actuarial valuation.

E. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimate and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance
Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of contingent
liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying
financial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates, if any, are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years
affected. Refer Note No. 3 for detailed discussion on estimates and judgments.

2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment & Capital Work in Progress
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses & Capital work in progress are stated at cost, if any. The cost comprises purchase
price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any
trade discounts, rebates, input tax credit (IGST/ CGST and SGST) or any other tax credit available to the
Group are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that future economic benefit associated with these will flow to the group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of property, plant and
equipment that takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized up to
the date such asset is ready for use.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Depreciation on plant, property and equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straightline method at their respective.
estimated useful lives, which is in line with trrl?@g_;i;?'ated useful lives as specified in Schedg{é:-y,.of-the\:\“\\\
Companies Act, 2013. ' ( 2\
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Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Rin Million, unless otherwise stated)

| Particulars Useful Life as per prescribed in

| Schedule I1 of the Act (year)

‘iFasehold Improvement* ) Lease Period b
Computer and peripherals 3-6

[ Furniture and fixtures 10

| Office equipment 375

' Vehicle 8

| Plant and Machineries 15

| Electrical Installations and Equipment | 10

| F—

*Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of
acquisition. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property plant and equipment is provided up to the date
preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

2.3 Other Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.

The cost comprises purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use which includes any trade discounts, rebates, input tax credit (IGST/ CGST and SGST)
or any other tax credit available to the group are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of intangible asset that
takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized from the date it meets
capitalization criteria till such asset is ready for use.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If
the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization
period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
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A summary of amortization period applied to the Group’s intangible assets is as below:

Particulars Useful life (years) \
Computer software 3-10 |

2.4 Fair value Measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

P In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
accessible to the Group.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizingthe use of unobservable inputs. The Group's management determines the policies and
procedures for fair value measurement.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

2.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue from Sale of Traded Goods

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, price
concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in
the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the recovery of consideration is
probable and determinable.

Revenue is recognized at a point in time when the goods and consumables are delivered at the agreed
point of delivery which generally is the premises of the customer.
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Other Income

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and

the applicable interest rate. Interest Income is recognised on a basis of effective interest method
out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no significant uncertainty as to measurabi

collectability exists.

Marketing Support

as set
lity or

Marketing support income is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts,

incentives, performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parti

es, or

other similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided

the recovery of consideration is probable and determinabie.

2.6 Taxes
a) Current Income Tax:

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the year end date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the

entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to reali
asset and settle the liability simuitaneously.

b) Deferred Tax:

ze the

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in financial statements.

Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liab
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects n

ility in
either

accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and

laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to

apply

when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses

only if

it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and

losses.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in

which

applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the

basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax

assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
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Current and deferred tax is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.7 Intangible asset under development
The Group capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological
and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a
defined milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts
to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the
project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

2.8 Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for warehouse and office. The Group assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,
the Group assesses whether: (i) the Group has the right to obtian substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset through the period of the lease and (i) the Group has the right
to direct the use of the identified asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
short-term leases (term of twelve months or less ) and lease of low value assets. For these short-term
leases and lease of low value assets, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the group’s incremental borrowings rate. It remeasured
when there is change in index or rate, if there is is a change in group’s estimate of amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the group changes its assessment of whether it will
exercises a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is measured in this way,
a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of right of -use asset, or is recorded in profit
& loss if carrying amount of right of -use asset has been reduced to zero.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of use-asset and lease liabilities for short term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The group recognizes the lease
payment associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.
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2.9 Inventories
The inventory comprises of traded goods which are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of inventory of traded goods is arrived based on actual cost by batch which comprises cost of
purchases and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision is made for the cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, whenever considered
necessary.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each year end whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial asset
or a group of non financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's
recoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable
amount. Losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and reflected in an allowance account.

When the Group considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash in flows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the
“Cash-Generating Unit” - CGU).

2.11 Business combinations
In accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 101, First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, a
first time adopter may elect not to apply Ind AS 103 retrospectively to past business combinations,
before the date of transition i.e 01 April 2019. However, the Group has not elected to opt for this
exemption and has applied Ind AS 103 retrospectively.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The
acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. Judgement is applied in
determining the acquisition date and determining whether control is transferred from one party to

another.
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Control exists when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through power over the entity. In assessing control,
potential voting rights are considered only if the rights are substantive. The Group measures goodwill as
of the applicable acquisition date at the fair value of the consideration transferred, less the net

recognised amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
consideration transferred, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in the OCl and accumulates
the same in equity as capital reserve where there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for
classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase else the gain is directly recognised in equity
as capital reserve. Consideration transferred includes the fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the previous owners of the acquiree, and equity interests issued by the Group.
Consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. Consideratio
transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Any

goodwill that arises on account of such business combination is tested annually for impairment.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay
contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then
it is not re-measured and the settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent
consideration is re-measured at fair value at each reporting date and subsequent changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration are recorded in the statement of profit and loss. A contingent

liability of the acquiree is assumed in a business combination only if such a liability represents a present

obligation and arises from a past event, and its fair value can be measured reliably.

2.12 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value
and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These

are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

The Group creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that probably will not require an outflow of resources. or where a reliable estimate of the obligation

cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term
deposits net of bank overdraft with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand
and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

2.14 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(A) Financial assets

{i) Initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
“at fair value through profit or loss”, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are

expensed in profit or loss.

(i) Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortized cost; or

b} at fair value through other comprehensive income; or

c) at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the related cash flows

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amounts are taken through Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCI’),
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from equity to
Statement of Profit and Loss and recognized in othit;’;ffins/ (losses). Interest income from these ﬁn_anc—:-i-lak.

P . “ . ” . ok ;f_\'.ﬁ ,//'{ 4 3y}
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The Group does not own any financial asset classified at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FvOCI
are measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss. Interest income from these financial

assets is included in “Other income”.

Asset that do not meet criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Interest income from these financial assets are included in other income. The group does not
own any financial asset classified at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity instruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in OCl subsequent changes in the
fair value in other comprehensive income . The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OC! to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the

cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at amortized

cost and FVOCI.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12 month ECLis a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.
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ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be
estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial

instrument.

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the

payment is more than 90 days past due.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income/expense
in the statement of profit and loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amortized cost
is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the Group
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

a) the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or

b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the financial asset is transferred then in that case financial asset is derecognized only if
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is transferred. Where the entity
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognized.

(B) Financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss and at amortized cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(i)Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and

financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Separated

Profit and Loss.
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a) Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as

finance costs.

(€) Embedded Derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid {combined) instrument that also includes a non-

derivative host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary
in a way similar to a standalone derivative. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are
separated if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss.

(D) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.
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2.15 Employee Benefits

(a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the year and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

(i) Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Group has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the
Group does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis
which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state insurance scheme is made
to the regulatory authorities, where the Group has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as
Defined Contribution Schemes as the Group does not carry any further obligations, apart from the
contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Group has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity: The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the 'Gratuity Plan") covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment,
of an amount based on the respective employee's salary. The Group's liability is actuarially determined
(using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized
in the other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or
encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The
obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences
as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Group's liability is
actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Leaves under define benefit plans can be encashed only on discontinuation of service by employee.
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2.16 Foreign Currency Transactions
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the transaction
date and settlement date are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate
prevailing at the year end and the exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

2.17 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to

equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The weighted average numbers of equity shares are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in the rights issue, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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3. Significant accounting Judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates coulid result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years.

3.1 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the year
end date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

i)Recognition of deferred tax assets & Liabilities:
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future temporary differences between the
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, depreciation carry-forwards and

tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and depreciation carry-forwards could be
utilized. The position will be reviewed at each reporting period and will be recognised when the
probability improves.

i) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits and leave encashment)

The cost of the defined benefit plans such as gratuity and leave encashment are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature,

a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each year end.

The principal assumptions are the discount and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the
market yields available on government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of
liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant

factors on long term basis.
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ili)intangible asset under development

The Group capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological
and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a
defined milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts

to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the

project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

iv)impairment of Non Financial Assets and Goodwill

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-
generating units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them.
Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of

a suitable discount rate.

v) Sales Return

The Group accounts for sales returns accrual by recording refund liability concurrent with the recognition
of revenue at the time of a product sale. This liability is based on the Group’s estimate of expected sales
returns. Accordingly, the estimate of sales returns is determined primarily by the Group’s historical

experience of sales returns.

At the time of recognising the refund liability, the Group also recognises an asset, (i.e., the right to the
returned goods) which is included in Other Current assets for the products expected to be returned. The
Group initially measures this asset at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected
costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods. Along
with re-measuring the refund liability at the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any

additional decreases in the value of the returned products.




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Xin Million, unless otherwise stated)

4. Standards issued but not effective
The amendments are proposed to be effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2021:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.

ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of
items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted
from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and

equipment.

Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — The amendment specifies that the
‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate
directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct
labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example
would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used

in fulfilling the contract).

The Group believes there will be no impact on its financial statements of these amendments.
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Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Consolidated Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Xin

10

11

11.1

12

13

14

Million, unless otherwise stated)

Other Financial Assets

Particulars

Security Deposits
Total

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) {net)

Deferred tax asset on account of:

On Disallowances u/s 40A of Income tax act 1961
On Ind AS Adjustment

Gratuity & Leave Encashment

Expected Credit Loss on Loans and advances
Unabsorbed depreciation

Unabsorbed loss

Deferred tax liability on account of:

Timing difference between tax depreciation and depreciation charged in the books
Net deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Deferred tax assets (net) recognised
Deferred tax assets (net) not recognised

Note (a): Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/liabilities(net)

Particulars

Timing difference between tax depreciaﬁon

and depreciation charged in the books

On Disallowances u/s 40A of Income tax act 1961
On Ind AS Adjustment

Unabsorbed depreciation

Unabsorbed loss

Gratuity & Leave Encashment

Expected Credit Loss Provision

Net Net deferred tax assets/(liability)

Asat As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

67.46 63.93

67.46 63.93

2,45 3.22

22.49 19.89

15.63 6.61

20.49 4,86

119.59 53.26

115.76 50.46
(43.40) (49.47)

253.01 88.83

17.43 16.23

6.77 3.29

263.68 101.77

As at (Charged)/ {Charged)/ As at

31 March 2021 Creditedto P& L  Credited to OCl 31 March 2022
(49.47) 6.07 - (43.40)
3.22 (0.77) - 2.45
19.89 2.60 - 22.49
53.26 66.33 - 119.59
50.46 65.30 - 115.76
6.61 9.09 (0.07) 15.63
4.86 15.63 - 20.49
88.83 164.25 (0.07) 253.01

The Group has unabsorbed business losses and depreciation which according to management will be used to set off taxable profit arising in the next few years from
operations of the company. However, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of INR 263.68 million (31 March 2021: INR 101.77 million) due to absence of
reasonable certainty of the ability to set off carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation against taxable profit in the immediate future. The position will be

reviewed at each reporting period and will be recognised when the probability improves.

Non current Tax assets / Current Tax Liabilities {Net)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Advance income tax (Net) 48.62 33.29
Total 48.62 33.29
Provision for tax 12.34 7.40
Tax (Liabilities) 12.34 7.40
Other non-current assets

Capital advance 2.07 -
Total other non-current other assets 2.07 -
Inventories

At lower of cost and net realizable value

Stock in trade {Including Goods-in transit of INR 12.77 Million ( 31 March 2021: INR 53.20 million ) 3,101.64 2,439.26
Total 3,101.64 2,439.26




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Consolidated Notes forming part of the Financial Statements far the year ended 31 March 2022

(X in Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Asiat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
15 Trade receivable
Unsecured
-Considered good 3,745.99 2,421.52
-Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk 82.25 20.83
Less: Expected loss allowances {82.25) {20.83)
3,745.99 2,421.52

Total

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2022

I

(i) Undisputed

(i) Undisputed
Trade Receivables -

(iv) Disputed Trade

{iif) Undisputed Trade| {iv) Disputed

(v} Disputed

Particulars/Due from Date of transaction Tf'ade Which have Receivables - Trade Receivables RecelYabIes ) Trade ReFelvabIes
Receivables - o . ) R Considered - Considered
Considered Good snnglfncant'lnc.rease Considered Doubtful | Considered Good Doubtful Doubtul
in credit risk
Unbilled dues - - - - - -
Less Than 6 Months 3,300.87 0.74 - - - -
6 Months to 1 Year 296.48 0.03 - - - -
1-2 Years 142.04 13.90 - - - -
12-3 Years 6.06 54.75 - - - -
More Than 3 Years 0.54 12.83 - - - -
Total 3,745.99 82.25 - - - -

As at 31 March 2021

(i) Undisputed

(i) Undisputed
Trade Receivables -

(iv) Disputed Trade

(ifi) Undisputed {iv) Disputed

(v) Disputed

Particulars/Due fram Date of transaction Trad? Which have Trade Receivables - |Trade Receivables Recel.vables ) fTrade .Recelvables
Receivables - s . . . Considered - Considered
Considered Good ISIgmﬁc.anF increase |Considered Doubtful |Considered Good Doubtful Doubtful
in credit risk

Unbilled dues - - - - - -

Less Than 6 Months 2,092.44 0.06 - - - -

6 Months to 1 Year 204.12 0.33 - - - -

1-2 Years 124.95 8.80 - - - -

2-3 Years - 11.64 - -

More Than 3 Years - - - - - -

Total 2,421.52 20.83 - - - -
16 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars asist Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Balances with banks:

On current accounts 439.21 305.89

Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months 1.49 0.02

Cheques/drafts on hand 0.13 0.26

Cash on hand 24.25 16.97

Total 465.08 323.14
17 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalent

In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months from

balance sheet date 588.90 505.10

Total 588.90 505.10
18 Loans

Unsecured, considered good

Loans to related party {Refer Note 46) 5.20 5.20

Loans to others 5.02 2.32

Total 10.22 7,52
19 Other financial assets

Interest accrued on Inter Corporate Deposits {ICD) 0.10 0.15

Interest accrued on Fixed Deposits (FD) 15.27 6.12

Total 15.37 6.27
20 Other current assets

Advance to suppliers 80.45 73.01

Less : Provision for doubtful advances e - (0.08)

Balance with government authaorities P : 265.53 230.33

Advance to staff VA= \ 7.55 8.70

Claim receivables ;.—'r .f" ? \ 56.76 26.90

Other current assets e { \> | 88.51 237.56

Less: Loss aliowances \\ y (1.07)

Prepaid Expenses LN, oY/i 83.90 50.02

Total \““_ Y/ 581.63 626.43

TN




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Consolidated Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(X in Million, unless otherwise stated)

21 Equity Share capital

As at As at

Particulars
artic 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

a. Authorised Share Capital
40,00,000 (31 March 2021: 250,000) Equity Shares of INR 10 each 40.00 2.50
Total 40.00 2.50

b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

38,50,000 (31 March 2021: 100,200) Equity Shares of INR 10 each 38.50 1.00
Total 38,50 1.00
c. Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the As at As at

beginning and at the end of the year 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particulars No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,00,200 1.00 1,00,200 1.00
Add: Issued during the year 37,50,000 37.50 - E
Outstanding at the end of the year 38,50,200 38.50 1,00,200 1.00

d. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. The company declares and
pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In
the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

e. Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at
Name of the shareholder 31 March 2022 Asr 81 Narchi2os,
No of shares % No of shares %
Mr. Prabhat Agrawal 25,60,000 66.49% 60,000 59.90%
Mr. Prem Sethi 12,90,000 33.51% 40,000 39.90%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

f. Shareholding of Promoters at the end of the year

Name of the Promoter As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
No. of Share % of Total Shares % Change During No. of Share % of Total % Change During
the Period Shares the Period
Mr. Prabhat Agrawal 25,60,000 66.49% 66.49% 60,000 59.90% -
Mr. Prem Sethi 12,90,000 33.50% 33.51% 40,000 39.90% -

g.No class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration other than cash by the Company during the period of two years immediately preceding the
current year end.
h.No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of two years immediately preceding the current year end.

i. Private Placement allotment
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has issued and allotted 37,50,000 equity shares of face value INR 10/- each to the eligible equity shareholders at an
issue price of INR 10/- per Equity Share aggregating to INR 37.50 million.
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Consolidated Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(% in Million, unless otherwise stated)

22 Instruments entirely equity in nature
Preference share capital

Particulars asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a. Authorised Share Capital
0.0001% Compulsory Convertible Preference shares (CCPS)
Series A1 CCPS {March 22 : 49,54,99,900 ; March 21 : 39,54,99,900) of INR 10 each 4,955.00 3,955.00
Series A2 CCPS {March 22 : 16,94,99,900 ; March 21 : 16,94,99,900) of INR 10 each 1,695.00 1,695.00
Series A3 CCPS (March 22 : 35,00,000 ; March 21 : 29,00,000 ) of INR 10 each 35.00 29.00
Series A4 CCPS (March 22 : 3,18,50,200 ; March 21 : 3,18,50,200) of INR 10 each 318.50 318.50
Yotal 7,003.50 5,997.50
b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
Series A1 CCPS (March 22 : 44,19,99,900 ; March 21 : 36,89,99,900) of INR 10 each 4,420.00 3,690.00
Series A2 CCPS (March 22 : 15,09,26,729 ; March 21 : 12,59,99,900 ) of INR 10 each 1,509.27 1,260.00
Series A3 CCPS (March 22 : 29,00,000 ; March 21 : 29,00,000) of INR 10 each 29.00 29.00
Series A4 CCPS {(March 22 : 2,31,63,347 ; March 21 19,2,12,500) of INR 10 each 231.63 192.12
Total 6,189.90 5,171.12
¢. Reconciliation of preference shares outstanding at the As at Asat
beginning and at the end of the year 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particulars No of shares Amount Mo of shares Amount
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 51,71,12,300 5,171.12 43,87,12,300 4,387.12
Add: Issued during the year 10,18,77,676 1,018.78 7,84,00,000 784.00
Outstanding at the end of the year 61,89,89,976 £,189.90 51,71,12,300 5,171.12

d. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

0.0001% Compulsory Convertible Preference shares (CCPS)

Terms of Conversion :

(a) The holders of the CCPS may convert the CCPS in whole or part into into 1 {one) Equity Share at any time befare the expiry of 19 (nineteen) years from the date of
issuance of the same subject to the adjustments as mentioned in Articles of Association, and the provisions of the Shareholders’ Agreement. In the event the conversion of
CCPS entitles the holder of CCPS to any fraction of an Equity Share, then such fraction shall be rounded up to the nearest whole number.

(b) The holders of CCPS shall, at any time prior to 19 (nineteen) years from the date of issuance of the same, be entitled to call upon the Company to convert all or any of
the CCPS. The CCPS, or any of them, if not converted earlier, shall automatically convert into Equity Shares at the then applicable conversion rate.

Senior Rights: The holders of Al CCPS, A2 CCPS and A3 CCPS shall rank senior to Series A4 CCPS and all other preference shares and other instruments that are outstanding
and which may be issued by the Company from time to time.

Meeting and voting rights: The holders of CCPS shall be entitled to attend meetings of all Shareholders of the Company and, will be entitled to such voting rights on an As
1f Converted Basis, as may be permissible under Applicable Law.Accordingly, but subject to adjustments as set forth herein, the holders of CCPS shall be entitled to the
same number of votes for each CCPS as a holder of 1 {one) Equity Share would have on each Equity Share held, provided however that in the event of any adjustment in
conversion the number of votes associated with each CCPS will change accordingly. The holders of CCPS shall be entitled to vote on all such matters which affect their

rights directly or indirectly.
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23

24

e. Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As at 31 March 2022

Name of the shareholder

As at 31 March 2021

No of shares

%

No of shares

%

Series A1 CCPS are issued to Orbimed Asia [l Mauritius Limited 44,19,99,900 100.00% 36,89,99,900 100.00%
Series A2 CCPS are issued to | M Investments Trust 15,09,26,729 100.00% 12,59,99,900 100.00%
Series A3 CCPS are issued to Mr. Prabhat Agrawal 17,40,000 60.00% 17,40,000 60.00%
Series A3 CCPS are issued to Mr. Prem Sethi 11,60,000 40.00% 11,60,000 40.00%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to Novacare Drug Specialities Private Limited 57,49,593 24.82% 48,00,000 24.98%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to K E Prakash 53,890,244 23.27% 45,00,000 23.42%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to Mr. Petros Diamantides 20,51,287 8.86% 17,12,500 8.91%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to R Prashanth 17,96,748 7.76% 15,00,000 7.81%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to Manoj K Sanghani 16,47,019 7.11% 13,75,000 7.16%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to Vikram Aditya Ambre 16,47,019 7.11% 13,75,000 7.16%
Series A4 CCPS are issugd to Hemant Barros 11,97,832 5.17% 10,00,000 5.20%
Series A4 CCPS are issued to Millennium Medicare Private Limited 11,97,832 5.17% 10,00,000 5.20%
f. Shareholding of Promoters at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Name of the Promoter No. of Share % of Total Shares % Change I?urlng No. of Share % of Total % Change I?urmg
the Period Shares the Period

Mir. Prabhat Agrawal "717,40,000 60.00% - 17,40,000 60.00% o
Mr. Prem Sethi 11,60,000 40.00% - 11,60,000 40.00% -

h. Private Placement allotment

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has issued and allotted 1,50,000 preference shares

preference shareholders at an issue price of INR 10/- per preference share aggregating to INR 1.5 million.

h. Right Isuue

( Series A4 CCPS) of face value INR 10/- each to the eligible

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has issued and allotted 10,17,27,676 preference shares ( Series A1 CCPS: 7,30,00,000, Series A2 CCPS: 2,49,26,829,
Series A4 CCPS: 3,80,0,847 ) of face value INR 10/- each to the eligible preference shareholders at an issue price of INR 10 per preference share aggregating to INR 1017.28

million.

Other equity
i} Retained Earnings

Particulars

Opening balance
Add: Net loss for the year
Add: Re-measurement loss on post employment benefit obligation {net of tax}

Closing balance

Non Controlling Interest
Particulars

Opening balance

Add: Net Profit for the year
Add: Re-measurement loss on post employment benefit obligation (net of tax}

Closing balance

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(318.46) (161.29}
(299.19) (155.37)
(0.33) (1.80)
(617.98) (318.46)
As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
16.94 15.16
4,81 1.83
- {0.05)
21.75 16.94




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Consolidated Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(X in Million, unless otherwise stated)

25 Lease Liability

*

Particulars st Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Long term Short term Long term Short term
At amortised cost (refer Note 41)
Lease Liability 576.86 119.17 532.32 79.90
Total 576.86 119.17 532.32 79.90
26 Provisions
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Long term Short term Long term Short term
a) Provision for employee benefits {Refer note 45)
Provision for gratuity (unfunded) 44.32 7.00 27.45 6.86
Provision for leave encashment (unfunded) 10.33 3.54 - 6.89
b) Other provisions
Provisian for sales return - 58.72 - 181.10
Total Provisions 54.65 69.26 27.45 194.85
27 Borrowings
As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 A5t 3 ilarch 2021
Long term Short term Long term Short term
1) Term Loan{Secured) 371.26 659.01
(Rate of interest 12 to 12.50%)
2) Working capital loan from Banks{Secured):
Cash credit* - 1,810.65 - 1,408.53
3) Other Loans & Advances(Unsecured) -
Loans and advances from Others - 9.36 - 8.50
{ Rate of interest: 0 to 12%)
Total Berrowings 371.26 2,479.02 - 1,417.03
i) Outstanding cash credit facility of INR 18,10.65 million (Previous year: INR 1,408.53 million : Secured against 25% margin on inventories and trade receivables in addition to
fixed deposit to the extent of 20% of the facility amount & pari passu charge on entire current assets of borrower, present and future.
(Facility amount INR 2,817 million; Rate of interest : Bank 1 year MCLR + 25 - 190 basis points; Effective interest rate for the period : 9.15 to 10.50 % p.a.)
- As at As at
Details of Guarantees given by holding Company: Name of Subsidiary 31March2022 31 March 2021
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 500.00 500.00
Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited 150.00 150.00
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited 350.00 300.00
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 50.00 50.00
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited 150.00 150.00
R S M Pharma Private Limited 250.00 150.00
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 80.00 80.00
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 50.00 50.00
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited 70.00 70.00
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited 150.00 100.00
Corporate Guarantees Given SVMED Solutions Private Limited 150.00 -
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited 150.00 -
Barros Enterprises Private Limited 67.00 -
Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Pvt Ltd 150.00 -
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited 120.00 100.00
Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 80.00 -
Chethana Pharma Private Limited 150.00 150.00
Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Lirr 226.62 -
Sri Parshva Pharma Distributors private limited 303.64 -
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited 150.00 100.00
Curever Pharma Private Limited 200.00
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28 Trade payables

Particulars s at e
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 23.42 10.70
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,374.37 956.70
Total trade payables 1,397.79 967.40
Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the information available with The Group:
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
|
{a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:
Principal 23.42 10.70
Total 23.42 10.70
{b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the payment made to - -
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
{c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the - -
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. -
{e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues - -
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act.
As at 31 March 2022 Outstanding for Following years from the date of transaction
M
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years ore than 3 Total
Years
MSME 23.42 - - - 23.42
Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
Other 1,359.54 10.70 4,13 1,374.37
|Disputed Dues - Others | - - | - - -
|As at 31 March 2021 Outstanding for Following years from the date of transaction
M
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years o:{ee;lr\:n 3 Total
MSME 10.70 - - - 10.70
Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
Other [ 952.98 3.72 - - 956.70
]Disputed Dues - Others - - - -
29 Other financial liabilities
Particulars asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Employee liabilities 97.14 74.14
Current maturities of long term debt - 0.20
Other Financial Liabilities 312.00 3192
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 141 1.90
Total other financial liabilities 410.55 108.16
30 Other current liabilities
Statutory dues payable 54.38 34.34
Other current liablitiees - 0.07
Other Payables 64.92 42.62
Advance from Customers 0.03 39.50
Total other current liabilities 119.33 116.53
-~ OL”-T -“"\
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31

32

33

34

35

Revenue from operations

Particulars

Sale of Traded goods

Other Operative Revenue
Total revenue from operations

Analysis of revenues by segments:
Particulars

Trading of pharmaceutical and surgical products.

Revenue based on Geagraphy
Domestic

Export

Total

Revenue based on timing of recognition
Revenue recognition at a point in time
Revenue recognition over period of time
Total

Other income

Particulars

Interest income

- on fixed deposits designated as amortized cost
- on intercorporate deposit

- Other interest income

- Interest on unwinding of security deposits

Net gain or loss on foreign currency transaction and

Coramission Income on sales
Marketing support
Miscellaneous income

Total other income

Purchase of Stock-in-trade
Purchases of Stock-in-trade
Total

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Inventaries at the beginning of the year
-Stock in trade

Less: Inventaries at the end of the year
-Stock in trade

Net increase

Employee benefits expense
Particulars

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds
Gratuity and leave encashment (Refer Note 45)
Leave Obligation

Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense

the year ended 31 March 2022

translation

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

25,152.67 17,731.04
44,97 -

25,197.64 17,731.04

For the Year ended  For the Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

25,197.64 17,731.04

25,197.64 17,703.97

- 27.06

25,197.64 17,731.04

25,197.64 17,731.04

25,197.64 17,731.04

For the Yearended  For the Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

28.52 22.24

0.12 0.17

1.92 4.03

3.83 2.99

1.58 3.83

- 1,13

3.82 49.72

28.05 21.52

67.84 105.63

23,778.19 16,865.68

23,778.19 16,865.68

2,439.25 1,954.97

2,439.25 1,954.97

3,093.07 2,439.26

3,093.07 2,439.26

(653.82) {484.29)

For the Year ended  For the Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

1,033.97 679.36

51.53 37.20

17.35 8.25

7.42 4.84

28.35 19.78

1,138.62 749.43
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particulars For the Yearended  For the Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
36 Finance costs
Interest Expenses
On bank loan 197.05 104.04
On Loan from Others 0.96 0.96
On delay in payment of taxes 1.30 0.19
On Lease Liabilities 61.64 58.61
Processing Charges 9.95 -
Others 0.11 19.90
Bank charges 18.77 16.68
Total finance costs 289.78 200.38
37 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation {Refer note 5) 192.33 160.89
Amortization {Refer note 7 5.21 1.87
Total depreciation and amartization expense 197.54 162.76
38 Other expenses
Rent 14.73 19.60
Rates and taxes 3.21 2.83
Legal and professional charges 102.48 68.45
Travelling expenses 54.98 32.07
Brokerage 9.69 11.35
Power and fuel 40.69 33.89
Repairs and maintenance 19.01 16.78
Distribution Cost 177.64 114.48
Outsource Servicing Experses 12.18 12.31
Printing and stationery 24,15 16.83
Commission Expenses 11.24 14.22
Communication expenses 13.84 8.75
Business premotion expenses 70.98 17.73
Provision for impairment (0ss 62.50 14.05
IT Expenses 10.36 6.13
Subscription Expenses 2.36 1.26
Office Expenses 2.13 1.01
Auditor's remuneration (Refer note below) 7.71 6.44
Security expenses 0.78 073
Housekeeping Expenses 2.45 1.29
Sign on Amount 16.33 6.00
Office Aircon Charges 0.61 0.45
Insurance 13.39 7.77
Miscellaneous expenses 39.84 36.67
Total other expenses 713.28 451.09
*Note : The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration including auditors of subsidiaries (exclusive of taxes)
As auditor:
Statutory audit 6.61 5.32
In other capacity:
Tax audit 0.96 0.70
Other matters 0.14 0.42
Total 7.71 6.44
39 income Tax
. For the Year ended  For the Year ended
particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year 98.43 45.58
Adjustments for current tax of prior years 0.21 1.26
Total Current tax 98.64 46.84
Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense {income) (2.36) (1.68)
Total tax expense 96.28 45.16
40 Earnings per share
. For the Year ended  For the Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company (A} {INR) (299.19) (155.37)
Weighted Average number of shares issued for Basic EPS (B) 15,59,104 1,0C,200
Adjustment for calculation of Diluted EPS{C) - -
Weighted Average number of shares issued for Diluted EPS (D= B+C) - -
Basic EPS in INR —— (191.90) {1,550.60)
Diluted EPS in INR \ (191.90) (1,550.60)




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Consolidated Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Zin Million, unless otherwise stated)

41 Disclosure related to Leases
Group as Lessee

{A) Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting year
Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions

Deletion

Depreciation charge for the year
Balance at the end of the year

(B} Carrying value of lease liability at the end of the reporting year
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Deletion
Interest on lease liability
Gain on modification
Payment made during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

Less than one year

One to five years

More than five years

Total undiscounted lease liabilities at reporting period

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position at the year ended

{D

—

{E) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss

Particulars

Interest on lease liabilities
Expenses relating to short-term leases

(F) Amounts recegnised in the statement of cash flows
Total Cash outflow for leases

42 impairment testing of Goodwill

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

558.77 553.72
183.67 105.41

(5.51) -
(120.33) (100.36)
616.60 558.77
612.22 575.76
178.28 78.79

(5.86) -
60.86 58.60

0.35 -
{149.82) {100.93)
696.03 612.22
179.07 134.85
549.75 441.86
172.92 249.83
901.74 826.54
696.03 612.22

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

61.64 58.61
14.73 19.60
76.37 78.20
150.25 100.93

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually on 31 March every year. Company operates in single segment/ Cash Generating Unit{CGU).

The recoverable amount of a CGU is based on higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participant at measurement date. Value in use is present value of future cas

from an assets (CGU). The value in use is estimated using discounted cash flows over a period of 5 years

h flow expected to be derived
and Cash flows beyond 5 years is estimated by capitalising the

future maintainable cash flows by an appropriate capitalisation rate and then discounted using appropriate discount rate. This fair value measurement was categorised

as a Level 3 fair value based on inputs in the valuation technigue used.

Operating margins and grow

th rates for the five year cash flow projections have been estimated based on past experience and after considering the financial

budgets/forecasts provided by the management. Other key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below. The values assigned to the

key assumptions represent management's assessment of future trends in the relevant industry and

sources.

Particulars

Discount rate

Terminal value growth rate
Revenue growth rate

With regard to assessment of recoverable amount, no reasonalably possible change in any of thea
exceed their recoverable amount.

have been based on historical data from both external and internal

As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
9.8%-12% 9.8% - 12%
7% 7%
15% 15%

bove key assumptions would cost the carrying amount of the CGU's to

The Group has also performed sensitivity analysis calculations on the projections used and discount rate applied. Company has concluded that, given the significant
headroom that exists, and the results of the sensitivity analysis performed, there is no significant risk that reasonable changes in any key assumptions would cause the

carrying value of CGU to exceed its value in use.
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43 Fair value measurements
A. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair val

Particulars

Financial assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2022
Non-current financial assets

Non-current MndsiLid eoa=22

Other Financial Assets

Current financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent
Loans

Other financial assets

Total

-y e s =

Lease Liabilities
Borrowings

Non-current financial liabilities

Current financizal liabilities
Lease Liabilities

Trade payables
Borrowings

Other financial liabilities
Total

Particulars

Financial assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2021
Non-current financial assets
Other Financial Assets

Current financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalent
Loans

Other financial assets

Total

Non-current financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities

Current financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities

Trade payables
Borrowings

Other financial liabilities
Total

ue hierarchy.

Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVTPL FVTOCI  Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

- - 67.46 67.46 - - 67.46 67.46
- - 3,745.99 3,745.99 - - 3,745.99 3,745.99
- - 465.08 465.08 - - 465.08 465.08
- - 588.90 588.90 - - 588.90 588.90

- 10.22 10.22 - - 10.22 10.22
- - 15.37 15.37 - - 15.37 15.37
- - 4,893.02 4,893.02 - - 4,893.02 4,893.02
- - 576.86 576.86 576.86 576.86
- - 371.26 371.26 - - 371.26 371.26
- - 119.17 119.17 - - 119.17 119,17
- - 1,397.79 1,397.79 - - 1,397.79 1,397.79
- - 2,479.02 2,479.02 - - 2,479.02 2,479.02
- - 410.55 410.55 - - 410.55 410.55
- - 5,354.65 5,354.65 - - 5,354.65 5,354.65

Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVTPL FVTOCI  Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

- - 63.93 63.93 - - 63.93 63.93
- - 2,421.52 2,421.52 - - 2,421.52 2,421.52
- 323.14 323.14 323.14 323.14
- - 505.10 505.10 - - 505.10 505.10
- - 7.52 7.52 - - 7.52 7.52
- - 6.27 6.27 - - 6.27 6.27
- - 3,327.43 3,327.48 - - 3,327.48 3,327.4?
- - 532.32 532.32 - - 532.32 532.32
- - 79.90 79.90 - - 79.90 79.90
- - 967.40 967.40 - - 967.40 967.40

- 1,417.03 1,417.03 - - 1,417.03 1,417.03
- - 108.16 108.16 - - 108.16 108.16
- - 3,104.81 3,104.81 - - 3,104.81 3,104.81

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy

gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobserva

measurements).

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instrum

fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

ble inputs (Level 3

ents measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments and mutual funds that have quoted price. The

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one ar more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrum

included in fevel 3.

ent is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities
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44

Business Combination

Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Acquisition of Western Agencies

On 01 April 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of the Western Agencies a partnership firm under slump sale. The deal envisaged the acquisition of
the business for a total cash consideration of INR 157.5 million including deferred consideration of INR 72.5 million payable on transfer of atleast 90% of new
supplier code by aquiree which shall be transferred within 120 days of closing date and milestone payment payable on achieving Sales, EBIDTA and Net
Working Capital targets. The transaction is accounted as per acquisition method of business combination under ind AS 103.

The acquisition is in line with the Company’s strategic to strengthen the position in Kerala market.

Purchase consideration transferred:

Particulars : Amount
Lump sum consideration (including contingent consideration) 157.50
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Particulars Amount
Property, Plant and Equipment 198
Inventories 69.78
Trade Receivables 49.76
Other Current Assets 0.65
Gratuity (1.62)
Trade Payable (42.16)
Total identifiable net assets 78.39
Amount recagnized as Goodwill:

Particulars Amount

Fair value of consideration transferred 157.50
Less: Fair value of the net assets acquired (78.39)
Goodwill 79.11

Acquired Receivables:
As on the date of acquisition, gross contractual amount of the acquired Trade and other Receivables was INR 50.41 million against which no provision had

been considered since fair value of the acquired receivables were equal to carrying value as on the date of acquisition.

City Pharma Distributors Private Limited

Acquisition of City Pharma Distributers

On 14th April 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of the City Pharma Distributers a partnership firm under slump sale. The deal envisaged the
acquisition of the business for a total cash consideration of INR 11.36 million including deferred consideration of INR 7.2 million payable on transfer of
atleast 90% of new supplier code by aquiree which shall be transferred within 90 days of closing date and milestone payment payable on achieving Sales,
EBIDTA and Net Working Capital targets. The transacticn is accounted as per acquisition method of business combination under Ind AS 103.

The acguisition is in line with the Company’s strategic to strengthen the position in Banglore market.

Purchase consideration transferred:

Particulars Amount
Lump sum consideration {including contingent consideration) 18.56
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
Particulars Amount
Property, Plant and Equipment 0.31
Inventories 8.95
Trade Receivables 5.58
Trade Payable {5.28)
Total identifiable net assets 9.56
Amount recognized as Goodwill:

Amount
Particulars
Fair value of consideration transferred 18.56
Less: Fair value of the net assets acquired {9.56)
Goodwill 9.00

Acquired Receivables:
As on the date of acquisition, gross contractual amount of the acquired Trade and other Receivables was INR 5.58 million against which no provision had

been considered since fair value of the acquired receivables were equal to carrying value as on the date of acquisition.

\\“/
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Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Acquisition of Atreja Medical Store

On 14 April 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of Atreja Medical Store a proprietorship firm under slump sale. The deal envisaged the acquisition
of the business for a total cash consideration of INR 20.46 million including deferred consideration of INR 2.5 million payable on transfer of atleast 90% of
new supplier code by aquiree which shall be transferred within 150 days of closing date and milestone payment payable on achieving EBIDTA targets & Net
waorking capital days target. The transaction is accounted as per acquisition method of business combination under Ind AS 103,

The acquisition is in line with the Company’s strategic intent to enter in Karnal, haryana market.

purchase consideration transferred:

Particulars Amount
Lump sum consideration (including contingent consideration) 20.46
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Particulars Amount
Inventories 7.93
Trade receivables 7.13
Trade payables (4.60)
Total identifiable net assets 10.46
Amount recognized as Goodwill:

Particulars Amount

Fair value of consideration transferred 20.46
Less: Fair value of the net assets acquired {10.46)
Goodwill 10.00

Acquired Receivables:

As on the date of acquisition, gross contractual amount of the acquired Trade and other Receivables was INR 7.13 million against which no provision had
been considered since fair value of the acquired receivables were equal to carrying value as on the date of acquisition.

New Siva Agencies Private Limited

Acquisition of Siva Agencies

On 02 December 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of the Siva Agencies a propritorship firm under slump sale. The deal envisaged the
acquisition of the business for a total cash consideration of INR 62.64 million including deferred consideration of INR 21.2 million payable on transfer of
atleast 90% of new supplier code by aquiree which shall be transferred within 90 days of closing date and milestone payment payable on achieving Sales,
EBIDTA and Net Working Capital targets. The transaction is accounted as per acquisition method of business combination under Ind AS 103.

The acquisition is in line with the Company’s strategic to strengthen the position in Chennai market.

Purchase consideration transferred:

Particulars Amount

Lump sum consideration (including contingent consideration) 62.64

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Particulars Amount

Property, Plant and Equipment 1.74

Inventories 12.52

Trade Recivables 22,21

Other Current Assets 293

Trade Payable (3.52)

Other Current Liabilty (0.43)

Total identifiable net assets 35.45

Amount recognized as Goodwill:

Particulars Amount

Fair value of consideration transferred 62.64

Less: Fair value of the net assets acquired (35.45)
27.19

Goodwill

Acquired Receivables:
As on the date of acquisition, gross contractual amount of the acquired Trade and other Receivables was INR 22.21 million against which no provision had

been considered since fair value of the acquired receivables were equal to carrying value as on the date of acquisition.
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New RRPD Private Limited
| Acquisition of New R R Pharmaceuticals Distributers

a On 03 December 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of the New R R Pharmaceuticals Distributers a partnership firm under slump sale. The deal

envisaged the acquisition of the business for a total cash consideration of INR 44,00 million inc
transfer of atleast 90% of new supplier code by aquiree which shall be transferred within 90 da
achieving Sales, EBIDTA and Net Working Capital targets. The transaction is accounted as per acquisition met
The acquisition is in line with the Company's strategic to strengthen the pesition in Chennai market.

b  Purchase consideration transferred:

\uding deferred consideration of INR 13.9 million payable on
ys of closing date and milestone payment payable on
hod of business combination under Ind AS 103.

-

Particulars Amount

Lump sum consideration (including contingent consideration) 44,00
¢ Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Particulars Amount

Assets acquired

Property, Plant and Equipment 0.54

inventories 17.94

Trade Receivables 14.04

Other Current Assets 1.66

Trade Payable (7.83)

Other Current Liabilty {0.15)

Total identifiable net assets 26.20
d  Amount recognized as Goodwill:

Particulars Amount

Fair value of consideration transferred 44.00

Less: Fair value of the net assets acquired {26.20)

17.80

Goodwill

e Acquired Receivables:

As on the date of acquisition, gross contractual amount of the acquired Trade and other Receivables w
been considered since fair value of the acquired receivables were equal to carrying value as on the date of acquisition.

Sri Parshva Pharma Distributors Private Limited

| Acquisition of Sri Parshva Drug House

a On 01 February 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of the Sri Parshva Drug House a partnership firm under slump sale. T
acquisition of the business for a total cash consideration of INR 551.78 million including deferred consideration of INR 85.00 Million
atleast 90% of new supplier code by aquiree which shall be transferred within 90 days of clo
targets & Net working capital days target. The transaction is accounted as per acquisition met

The acquisition is in line with the Company’s strategic intent to enter in Banglore market.

b Purchase consideration transferred:

as INR 14.04 million against which no provision had

he deal envisaged the
payable on transfer of
milestone payment payable on achieving EBIDTA
hod of business combination under Ind AS 103.

Particulars Amount

Lump sum consideration (including contingent consideration) 551.78
¢ Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Particulars Amount

Assets acquired

Property, Plant and Equipment 32.31

inventories 147.05

Trade receivables 276.40

Trade payables {73.07}

Total identifiable net assets 382.69
d  Amount recognized as Goodwill: e

Particulars Amount

Fair value of consideration transferred 551.78

Less: Fair value of the net assets acquired (382.69)

169.09

Goodwill

oo A
~ A .

e Acquired Receivables:

—
——

As on the date of acquisition, gross contractual amount of the aequirk
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Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited

| Acquisition of Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors
a  On 01 March 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of the 5ri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors a partnership firm under slump sale. The deal
envisaged the acquisition of the business for a total cash consideration of INR 562.94 million including deferred consideration of INR 214.3 million payable on
transfer of atleast 90% of new supplier code by aquiree which shall be transferred within 150 days of closing date and milestone payment payable on
achieving EBIDTA targets & Net working capital days target. The transaction is accounted as per acquisition method of business combination under Ind AS
103.
The acquisition is in line with the Company’s strategic intent to enter in Hyderabad market.

b  Purchase consideration transferred:

J——

particulars Amount

-
Lump sum consideration {including contingent consideration) 562.94

¢ Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
Particulars

R

Amount
-
Assets acquired
Property, Plant and Equipment 0.30
Inventories 73.09
Trade receivables 305.45
Trade paysbles (98.39)
Total identifiable net assets 280.44
d Amount recognized as Goodwill:
. Amount
Particulars
Fair value of consideration transferred 562.94
Less: Fair value of the net assets acquired (280.44)
Goodwill 282.50

e Acquired Receivables:
As on the date of acquisition, gross contractual amount of the acquired Trade and other Receivables was INR 305.45 million against which no provision had
been considered since fair value of the acquired receivables were equal to carrying value as on the date of acquisition.

Swami Medisolutions Private Limited

| Acquisition of swami Medical Hall

a3 Op 21 December 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of M/s Swami Medical Hall. a proprietorship firm under slump sale. The deal envisaged the
acquisition of the business for a total cash consideration of INR 51.35 million including deferred consideration of INR 4 million payable on transfer of atleast
90% of new supplier code by aquiree which shall be transferred within 150 days of closing date and milestone payment payable on achieving EBIDTA targets
& Net working capital days target. The transaction is accounted as per acquisition method of business combination under Ind AS 103.
The acquisition is in line with the Company’s strategic intent to enter in Amirtsar, Punjab market.

b Purchase consideration transferred:
- Particulars Amount

Lump sum consideration (including contingent consideration) 51.35

¢ Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

_—

Particulars Amount

Property, Plant and Equipment 0.29
Inventories 2421
Trade receivables 2422
Trade payables {10.36)
Total identifiable net assets 3835

d Amount recognized as Goodwill:

PE——

Particulars Amount

Eair value of consideration transferred 51.35
Less: Fair value of the net assets acquired (38.35)
Goodwill 13.00

e Acquired Receivables:

As on the date of acquisition, gross contractual amount of the acquired Trade and other Receivables was INR 24.22 million against which no provision had
been considered since fair value of the acquired receivables were equal to carrying value as on the date of acquisition.
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Contingent liabilities & commitments

. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Estimated Amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account - 3.00
0.12 0.12

Bank guarantees

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) of the
Company. The Managing director of the Company acts as the {CODM). The Company operates only in one business segment i.e. trading of pharmaceutical and
surgical products and hence, the Company does not have any separzte reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

Capital Management
The primary ohjective of the company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximizes shareholder value. The

Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions, annual operating plans and long term and other
strategic investment plans. in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 march 2022,31 march 2021.The
company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' to ‘equity’. For this purp,0se, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-
bearing loans and borsowings less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises all companents of equity including share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity share holders.

The company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows.

Particulars fisat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Borrowings
Long term and Short term borrowings 2,850.28 1,417.03
Less: cash and cash equivalents (465.08) (323.14)
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (588.90) {(505.10)
Adjusted net debt 1,796.30 588.79
Total Equity 5,632.17 4,870.60

0.32 0.12

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio
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48 Financial Risk Management

The Group has in place comprehensive risk management policy in order to identify measure, monitor and mitigate various risks pertaining to its business. Along with
the risk management policy, an adequate internal control system, commensurate to the size and complexity of its business, is maintained to align with the
philosophy of The Group. Together they help in achieving the business goals and objectives consistent with The group's strategies to prevent inconsistencies and
gaps between its policies and practices. The Board of Directors/committtees reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management policy and internal
control system. The Group's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies.

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

¢ Credit risk

» Liquidity risk and

* Market risk

{A) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises

principally from the Group’s trade and other receivables. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

i) Trade and Other Receivables
Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been managed by the Group
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the

normal course of business.

in compliance with the requirement of Ind AS 109, The Group uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss. The Group computes the expected
credit loss allowance as per simplified approach for trade receivables based on available external and internal credit risk factors such as the ageing of its dues,
market information about the customer and The Group’s historical experience for customers. The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected
credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is based on the

ageing of the receivable days and the rates as given in the provision matrix.

(B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that The Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial fiabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its fiabilities when

they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the group's reputation. Management monitors
rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting

interest payments.

date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 1 year or less 1-5 years More than Total
31 March 2022 5 years
Lease Liabilities 179.07 548,75 172.92 901.74
Borrowings 2,479.02 371.26 - 2,850.28
Trade Payables 1,3¢7.79 - - 1,397.79
Other financial liabilities 410.55 - - 410.55
Total 4,466.44 921.01 172.92 5,560.36
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 1 year or less 1-5 years More than Total
31 March 2021 5 years
Lease Liabilities 134.85 441.86 249.83 826.54
Borrowings 1,417.03 - 1,417.03
Trade Payables 967.40 - 967.40
Other financial liabilities 108.16 - - 108.16
Total 2,627.44 441.86 249.83 3,319.13
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(C) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the Group’s income or the value of
its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and contral market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while

optimising the return. The Group's exposure to, and management of, these risks is explained below.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. the Group caters mainly to the Indian
Market . Most of the transactions are denominated in the Group's functional currency i.e. Rupees. Hence the Group is not materially exposed to Foreign Currency

Risk.

{ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The exposure of the Graup's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Variable rate horrowings 2,850.28 1,417.03
fixed rate borrowings
Sensitivity:
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates would have following impact on profit tax tax and equity -
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points 21.09 10.49
(21.09) (10.49)

Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points

A
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49 Employee benefits

. Defined contribution plans

The Company has classified the various
Provident Fund

. Employee state insurance fund

Labour welfare fund

benefits provided to employees as under:

®

o

The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan -

Particulars

Contribution to Provident Fund

Employers Contribution to Employee state insurance
Employers Contribution to Labour welfare fund
Total

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

unfunded Gratuity Scheme for its employees
obligations an

The Company has a
year end. The present value of the defined benefit
Projected Unit Credit Method.

e balance sheet
he Projected

n of the defined benefit obl':gafion was carried out at th
cost were measured using

The actuarial valuatio
and the related current service cost and past service

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in thi
date:

Sr No

Defined benefit plans

Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss during the year:
Current service cost
Net interest cost / (income) o

Total expenses

n the net defined benefit liability / (asset)

Included in other comprehensive income

Amount recognized in ocl, Beginning of Period

Actuarial (gains) / losses due to demegraphic assumption changes in defined
benefit obligations

Actuarial (gains) / losses due
obligations

Actuarial (gains)/ losses due to experience on defined benefit obligations
Total Remeasurements recognized in OCl

Amount recognized in OCi, End of Period

to financial assumption changes in defined benefit

and gratuity liability has been provided
d the related current service cost and p

s respect, the following table sets out the details of th

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
41.28 29.08
10.05 7.95
0.20 0.17
51.53 37.20

based on the actuarial valuation done at the
ast service cost were measured using the

date. The present value of the defined benefit obligations

Unit Credit Method.

e employee benefit obligation as at balance sheet

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gratuity Gratuity
{Unfunded) {Unfunded)

14.90 9.07
2.45 1.87

17.35 10.94

(3.70) (5.75)

(0.35) (0.45)
(0.10) 247
0.71 0.03
0.26 2.05

(3.44) (3.70)
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Sr No

Vi

vl

BN

For the Year ended For the Year ended
. X 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Defined benefit plans ___._.—-—————-—-——_-___'_'_Gratuity Gratuity
{Unfunded) (Unfunded)

_ funfunded) T ——

Net liability recognised as at balance sheet date:

Present value of defined benefit obligation {51.33) (34.31)
Deficit (51.33) (34.31)

Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 34.31 25.65
Current service cost 14.80 8.80
Past service cost - 0.19
Interest cost 2.47 1.87
Acguisition cost 1.61 -
Actuarial {gains) / 1oss 0.26 1.86
Benefits paid (2.12) {4.06)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 51.33 34.31
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Expected cash flows for future years (valued on undiscounted basis):

1st Following Year 7.18 7.07
2nd Following Year 6.36 3.39
3rd Following Year 6.06 3.51
4th Following Year 6.96 4.24
5th Following Year 7.17 4.66
Sum of Years 6 To 10 24.62 15.23
Sum of Years 11 and above 20.76 10.60
Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:

Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of

the year

(i) +1% increase in discount rate (2.64) (1.56)
{ii) -1% decrease in discount rate 291 173
(ifi) +1% increase in rate of compensation levels 2.84 1.78
(iv) -1% decrease in rate of compensation levels (2.66) (1.61)

Sensitivity analysis method
The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of

the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely

that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the

projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit

obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Actuarial assumptions: As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Discount rate 6.30%-6.80% 6.30%-6.80%
Expected Rate of increase in compensation levels 6.00%-10.00% 6.00%-10.00%
Withdrawal Rate 5.00%-33.00% 5.00%-33.00%

Mortality Rate During Employment
|ALM {2012-14) Ultimate 1ALM (2012-14) Ultimate

Retirement age 55-58 years 55-58 years

Leave Encashment
The amount recognized as an expense in respect of compensated absences is INR 7.42 million (31 March 2021: INR 4.84 million))
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50 Information of related party transactions as required by ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

A. Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

Description of relationship

Name of the related party

Prabhat Agrawal (Managing Director)
Prem Sethi (Director)

Sunny Sharma (Director)

Arun Sadhanandham {Director)

Vipul Desai {Director)

Jayant Prakash {Company Secretary)

Key Management Personnel and their relative:

. Details of related party transactions:

Forthe Year ended  For the Year ended
Nature of Transaction Name of the related part
party 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
. Medmate Pharma Private Limited {formerly
Purchase of Stock in trade . : .
known as Getwell Enterprises Private Limited) R 4.45
Prabhat Agrawal 31.20 28.78
Remuneration Paid Prem Sethi 15.78 12.88

Jayant Prakash 1.58 -

| Consultancy Getwell Pharmaceuticals 2.40 2.40
C. Details of balances outstanding for related party transactions:
As at As at
Nat fTi ti Name of the related part
‘ ature of Transaction party 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
| Loans & Advances Given Novacare Drug Specialities Private Limited 5.20 5.20
|'- Other Current Liahilities Novacare Drug Specialities Private Limited - 0.02|
D. Key management persannel compensation:
. For the Year ended  For the Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Director Remuneration:
Salaries and Allowances 48.56 41.66

Key managerial personnel who are under the employment of the Group are entitled to post employment benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee
Benefits’ in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not included

above.Gratuity has been computed for The Group as a whale and hence excluded.

E. The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Qutstanding balances at the year-end
are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party

and the market in which the related party operates.
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51 Additional information as required by paragraph 2 of the general instructions for preparations of consolidated financial statem

ar ended 31 March 2022

ents:-

’Naime of entity Net assets Share in profit or loss Sharein otr?er comprehensive | Share in ToFaI comprehensive
income income
% of
% of % of % of consolidated
INR consolidate INR consolidated INR consolidated INR Total
d net assets profit or loss ocl comprehensive
income
Holding company
Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 5,512.06 97.87% (408.47) 138.76% (0.12) 35.30% (408.59) 138.80%
Subsidiaries Company
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Lmited 47.02 0.83% (1.24) 0.42% 0.37 (113.58%) (0.87) 0.30%
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited 18.72 0.33% (5.89) 2.00% (0.06) 18.42% {5.95) 2.02%
R S M Pharma Private Limited 53.48 0.95% 33.01 (11.21%) 0.57 (174.98%) 33.58 (11.40%)
Getwell Medicare Solutions Private Limited 145.10 2.58% 32.04 (10.88%) 0.06 (18.38%) 32.10 (10.89%)
Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited {56.98) (1.01%) (8.10) 2.75% (0.04) 12.28% (8.14) 2.76%
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (18.94) (0.34%) (9.53) 3.24% (0.07) 20.87% {9.59) 3.26%
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited 5.33 0.09% 23.94 (8.13%) {0.16) 47.87% 23.78 (8.07%)
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited 2.05 0.04% 3.84 (1.30%) 0.02 (7.62%) 3.86 {1.31%)
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited 118.51 2.10% 54.65 (18.56%) 0.01 {4.57%) 54.66 (18.55%)
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited (4.57) {0.08%) 4.23 (1.44%) (0.25) 75.82% 3.98 (1.35%)
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 9.59 0.17% 3.40 (1.16%) {0.05) 15.35% 3.35 (1.14%)
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited 1.78 0.03% 3.37 (1.15%) 0.04 (10.79%) 341 (1.16%)
SVMED Solutions Private Limited 21.87 0.39% 13.65 (4.64%) (0.00) 0.36% 13.65 (4.63%)
Chethana Pharma Private Limited 125.84 2.23% 58.54 {19.89%) (0.01) 4.59% 58.53 (19.86%)
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited 20.08 0.36% 8.65 (2.54%) {0.28) 86.69% 8.37 (2.84%)
Rada Medisolutions Private Limited {6.85) (0.12%) 1.72 (0.58%) (0.02) 6.11% 1.70 (0.58%)
Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Private Limited 15.92 0.28% 13.94 (4.74%) (0.04) 13.05% 13.90 (4.72%)
Barros Enterprises Private Limited 32.33 0.57% 16.92 (5.75%) (0.14) 43.90% 16.77 (5.69%)
Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Limited (7.82) (0.14%) (4.56) 1.55% 0.05 (16.83%) {4.51) 1.53%
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited {4.01) {0.07%) {1.94) 0.66% (0.05) 16.29% {2.00) 0.68%
CPD Pharma Private Limited (1.50) (0.03%) (3.84) 1.30% 0.08 (23.02%) (3.76) 1.28%
Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited (1.38) (0.02%) (1.59) 0.54% (0.02) 4.89% (1.61) 0.55%
Curever Pharma Private Limited (177.29) (3.15%) (167.13) 56.77% 0.03 (10.16%) (167.10) 56.70%
Rimedio Pharma Private Limited 0.03 0.00% {0.04) 0.01% - 0.00% {0.04) 0.01%
Quromed Life Sciences Private Limited 0.03 0.00% (0.04) 0.01% - 0.00% (0.04) 0.01%
Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 19.62 0.35% 19.72 (6.70%) (0.25) 78.10% 19.47 (6.61%)
City Pharma Distributors Private Limited {2.97) (0.05%) (3.07) 1.04% - 0.00% (3.07) 1.04%
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (1.11) (0.02%) (1.21) 0.41% - 0.00% (1.21) 0.41%
New Siva Agencies Private Limited 0.50 0.01% 0.40 (0.14%) - 0.00% 0.40 {0.14%)
New RRPD Private Limited 1.16 0.02% 1.06 (0.36%) - 0.00% 1.06 {0.36%)
Swami Medisolutions Private Limited (1.76) (0.03%) (1.86) 0.63% - 0.00% {1.86) 0.63%
Zennx Software Solutions Private Limited 0.08 0.00% (0.02) 0.01% - 0.00% {0.02) 0.01%
Sti Parshva Pharma Distributors Private Limited 1.46 0.03% 1.36 {0.46%) - 0.00% 1.36 (0.46%)
5ri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited {1.63} (0.03%) (1.68) 0.57% 0.00 {0.00%) (1.68) 0.57%
Sub Total 5,865.78 103.87%| (325.75) 111.05% (0.33) 100.00% (326.07) 110.80%
Inter Company elimination & Consolidation adjustment (255.4} (4.53%) 26.55 (9.02%) 0.00% 26.55 {9.01%)
Minority Interest 21.75 0.39% 481 (1.63%) 0.00% 4.81 (1.63%)
|— 5,632.17 100%  (294.38) 100% (0.33) 100% {294.71) 100%
-
/ \Q“&SQLUTM ""J;
&S )
= Z
= >
© )
Y/,
&"’:’llg % ﬂ,\\\\"




Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Consolidated Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Xin Million, unless otherwise stated)

55 Ratio Analysis

(k) Return on investment

Net profit after tax

% change from
31 March 2021
i i 2|3 h 2021
Particulars Numerator Denominator 31 March 202 1 March 20 to 31 March
2022
a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.85 2.19 -15.64%
Short term | terl . 0.51 0.29
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio ort term and [ong term |t Equity 73.95%
borrowings
Explanation The Group has borrowed fund during the year, resulting in increase in debt equity ratio.
Earning before Interest Shaort term and long term 0.03 0.06
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio arning & lmter . & -50.46%
and Tax borrowings
Explanation The Group has borrowed fund during the year, resulting in decrease in debt service coverage ratio.
i i i i -64.08%
{d) Return on Equity Ratio Net Profit After Tax Total Equity (0.05) (0.03) o
Explanation Decreased ratio due to increase in employee benefits & finance cost for business growth.
(e) Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 8.35 7.47 11.71%
i 0.15 0.14
(f)tTOrade Regeivables turnoyer Trade receivables Net credit sales 8.86%
rati
0.06 0.06
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio |Trade payable Credit purchases 2.49%
0.15 0.19
1) Net capital turna " Sal Working Capital (Current 20.15%
- .. 0
(h) Net capital turnover ratio aes Assets-Current Liabilities)
(i) Net profit ratio Net profit after tax Net Sales (0.01) (0.01) -33.46%
Explanation Decreased ratio due to increase in employee benefits & finance cost for business growth.
{]) Return on Capital employed  |Net profit after tax |Capita| Employed [ (0.04)| (0.03)] -36.88%
Explanation Decreased ratio due to increase in employee benefits & finance cost for business growth.
|Average Total Assets | (0.03)] (0.02)] -53.20%

Explanation

Decreased ratio due to increase in employee benefits & finance cost for business growth.

56 Other Statutory Information:

{i) The Group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against The Group for holding any Benami property.

{ii) The Group do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

{iii} The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory year.

{iv) The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

{v) The Group have not advanced or extended loan or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of The Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
{vi) The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that The Group shall: ) )

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities idertified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{vii) The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by The Group towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The
Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders
which are underactive consideration by the Ministry. The Group will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact
in its financial statements in the year in which, the Code becomes effective and therelated rules to determine the financial impact are published.

{viii) The Group does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
(previous year) in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or by any government authorities.

X) Disclosure of Loans or Advances granted to related parties( as defined under Companies Act, 2013):-
a) Repayable on demand (Unsecued)

As at
31 March 2022

As at

31 March 2021 % of total loans

% of total loans

Related Parties 5.20 50.88% 5.20 69.15%
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52 Reconciliation of quarterly returns or statements filed with banks or financial institutions

Amount as
' Amount as per [reported in Difference (in Reason for material
Quarter Name of Bank Particulars hoaks of the quarterly . . .
INR million) discrepancies
account return/
statement
HDFC, RBL, Inventory 2257.43 2261.09 (3.65)
31 March 2022 Indusind, Creditors Reclassification & year end
Axis, IDFC & 1118.32 1231.98 (113.66) closing adjustments.
| ICICI Bank Debtors 2746.58 2711.79 34.79
53 Statement of unhedged foreign currency exposure:
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particulars Amountin Amount Amount in Amount
USD{million} uSsD(million}
Advance to vendors 0.05 3.58 0.12 8.93
54 Disclosure of Business combination that took place subsequent to year end:-
Name of entity Date of % of holding
acqusition
Saurashtra Medisolutions Private Limited 01-May-22 100%
SVS Lifesciences Private Limited 24-Jun-22 100%
18-Aug-22 100%

S.S. Pharma Traders Private Limited
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57 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year's classification.

As per our report of even date

For M $ K A & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Firm Registration No.;105047W CIN: U74999HR2018PTC072204
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Prabhat Agraw Prem Sethi Jayara Prakash
Managing Directpr Director Company Secretary
Membership No: 049902 * DIN: 07466382 DIN: 07077034 M.N.:FCS-6742
Place: Mumbai —— Place: Mumbai
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